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DAINIK ASAM, Guwahati, Thursday, October 17, 2019 [

THIS IS A PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT IN COMPLIANCE WITH ONLY AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INVITATION OR OFFER TO ACQUIRE, PURCHASE OR SUBSCRIBE TO SECURITIES NOR IS IT APROSPECTUS ANNOUNCEMENT.

crReeNPaANEL GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

The Company (Corporate [dentification Number U20100AS52017PLC018272) was incorporated on December 13, 2017 as a public limited company with the
name “Greenpanel Industries Limited". The registered office of the Company is situated at Makum Road, P.O. Tinsukia, Assam -786125.

The main ebject under the Memorandum of Association of the Company is “To carry on business as manufacturers, traders, exporters, importers, dealers, wholesalers, retailers, service providers, commission agents, of medium density fibreboard (MDF), high density fibreboard (HDF), wooden
flooring, plywood, particle board, doors, laminated wooden flooring, laminates of all sizes and descriptions, veneers, pre-laminated board, decovative laminates, decorative laminated sheets, high pressure laminates, post forming laminates, decorative veneers, ready to install doors, high-end
doors, High-end Veneered Engineering Flooring and Pre-laminated Particle Board of all kinds and descriptions and other paper based, wood based and plastic based products of all kinds and descriptions and industrial laminafed sheefs, compact laminates of every descripfions, post formed
paneis, whether laminated or not, resfroom cubicles, lockers and every type of partition systems and to act decorators and manufacturers and deal in housing furniture and fittings, interior decorators, commercial and industrial furniture and fittings and implements and fools of all descriptions and
provide consultancy in tofal interior and exterior decoration and furniture solution. "There has been no change in the object clause of the Company till date,

Pr_as.emly. Mr, Bhandarl, besides being on the Board of Indian Instilvte of Management, Indore, also hold

Financial Information
The following information has been derived from the consolidated financlal stalements of Greenlam for the last
thres financal years:

(Amourd in Lakhs)

| Particulars As ol As ol As of

March 31, March 31, March 31,
| 2019 2018 2017
| Equity Capdtal (lace value Rs. Si- par shara) 1,206 82 1,206 82 1,206 82
| Other Equity 4163439 34 406 4B 28,607.30
| Revenue from cperations and othet income 1.28,223.22 1,15,T35.76 1,11,584 50
! PrafitiLoss) afer tax T2 646173 4968705
| Basic eamings per share (in Rs.) 3185 277 20,58
| Diluted eamings per share in R 3195 2677 20.58
| Met asset value per share (in Rs ) 17750 147.55 12353

There has been no publicissue or rights issue of Greenlam in the preceding three years,

Thare ane no pending itigations agairst Grsenam which woukd have a matenal inpacton the Compary,
Greenlam is nol a sick company within the meaning of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act,
1895, Futher, no appiication has been made by Greeniam io the Registrar of Companies for striking off its name
There ara comman pursuts between Greenlam and the Company fo the extent of manufacturing and selling of

decoralive veneers
List of Diractars:
1. Shiv Prakash Mitiel
2. Saurabh Mittal
3. Panul Metal
&, \ijay Kumar Chopra
5 Sonai Bhagwas Dalal
6. Sandip Das
Related Party Transactions:
Name of the Related Party Nature of Transaction Amounts (in INR and in kakhs)
Greenlam Indusiras Limited Sala of products 546.14
Greenlam Indusiries Limiled Purchase of products 137.36
Greanply Industries Limiled Sala of prodicts 441603
Outstanding litigations and defaults of the transferee entity, promofers, direclors or any of the group
companies:
Litigations egains! the Company
Type of Proceedings Number of Cases Amount involved, to the extent
quantifiable (in INR and in lakhs)
“Crmingl ~ Fone. Hone
Materia Civil Proceedings None Hone
Actians by regulatarystatutory authorities Mone Hone
Diret Tax Mone Nong
| Iddinect Tax _ T 1029.07
Litigations by the Company
Type of Proceedings Number of Cases Amount involved, to the extent
guantifiable (in INR and in lakhs)
Criminal 1L} NIA,
Malerial Chvil Proceedings Noo Nene

There are na Ifigations nvolving the Company's Direchars, Promaters, Subsidiaries.
Further, there are no litigations imvolving e Group Companies which have a material impact on the Comgany

SEBI conducted an nvestigation inlo the trading actvities of certain entities in Siquid slock cptions at BSE for the
peniod Apdl 1, 2014 to Septembar 30, 2015. Basis this investigation § was observed thal Ms, Santash Mittal, wile of
M. Shiv Prakash Mittal and part of Promater Group, had indulged in execution of reversal trades in the slock options
segment of BSE during the investigation panod. Such trades wene obsarved to be noa-genuing in nature and created
feise or misleading appearance of frading in terms of aificial volumes in stock opfions and therefore alleged to be
manipulative and decepive in natune. In veew ol the same SEBI initiated adjudication proceedings agains! the nolces
forvinlation of the peovisions of Reguiations 3{a). 3b), 3c), 3(d), 4 (1) and 4 [22) of SEBI | Prohibition of Frauduent and
Unfia Trade Practices) Regulatons, 2003. The Adjudicating Oficer of SEBI after having considered all the facts and
circumstances of tha case, the matarial availabla on recond, the factors mentioned in Section 15J of the SEBI Act
imposed a penalty of Rs.5, 00,000 (Rupees Five Lakh only] on the nolicea viz. Ms. Sanlosh Mittal under fhe provisions
of Section 15HAof the SEBI Act. Tha same has sinte baen seitied.

Particulars of high, low and average prices of the shares of the fisted transferor entity during the preceding

Details of the Promaters:

Hame, Designation and
Address of the Promoters
Mama: Mr. Shiv Prakash Mitta!
Designation: Executive Chalrman
Address: Flat Mo 2NW,

5 Queens Park, Kolicata-T00 (19
DIM: 00237242

Date of Birth: Aprl 7,194%;

Brief biegraphy of the promoters

Mr. Shiv Prakash Mittal, holcs & bachelor's degree in sciance from e
University of Calcutia, He is one of the founders of Greanply Industries
Limited. He was also associated with Kitply Industries Limited for 21
[twenfty-one) years. He has over thirty years of experience in the fieids of
production and markesing in phywood, laminates, MOF and alied products,

Hama: Mr. Shobnan Minal
Designation: Managing Direchor

Mr. Shobhan Mittal holds a bachelor degren in busness adminisiraton
and was Joint Managing Diractar & CED of Greenply Industries Lid. Ha
and CEQ possesses over 10 len) years of experience in business administration
Address: 46, Lakeshore View, and markaling strabegy. He was instrumental in setting-up of the MOF

i o units of the Company at Paninagar, Utarakhand a5 well a5 at Chiltoor,

DIN: 00347517 Andhra Pradesh, Aler successhully streamiining the Paninagar uni, he
Date of Birth: August 18, 1580 Is presendly imolved in the streamiining the oparations of the Chiftoor unil.
Business

The Company & a wood based inlenor infrastraciune comparny. primatily engaged in the manwtacture of an aray of
wood- basad paned products which includes plywood, MDF boards and alled products. Company was incomorated in
theyear 2017,

Company's products and mapar brands ane as folows:

Manufacturing Unit, Products and brand:

Manufacturing Unit Product Brand

Paninagar, Uttarakhand Piywood and allied products Greanpanel
Paninagar, Uttarakhand MDF and afied products Greanpanel
Chittoor, Andhra Pradesh MDF and afied products Greanparm|

The Company is exparting MDF and allied products through its wholly owned subsidiary, Greanpanel Singapore Fia.

Limited, Singapare. The Company has pan-Inda brand presence, inbegrated faciitles and dealer network. The

products manugactunad by the Company are sold acroess the country under te brand name of "Greanpanal”. Company

has.a natiorwide sales and dealar network in the form of its own marketing offices, dealers, sub-dealers and ratailers.

The sales and marketing teams periodically review now procducts, assesses marked tnends and develop and build

business relabions. Company has & pan-India marketing network. The dealer nebwork comprises of & significant

rumber of Plywood dealers/stockists and MDF boards dealers/stockists, through whom we have acoess 1o a network
of Plywood and MDF boards sub-dealers and rataslers. We believa this pan-india dealer netwark ensures that the
products s eagily avalable in aimost any part of india,

W havee a ceniralized ERP system, software sysiem daveloped by SAP, which integrates the managemen] and

alincation of resounces for all segments of the businass operations ranging from human rasourcas to guality conlrol.

Fer FY ended on March 31, 2019, the tolal revenss was INR 58,731.41 lakhs. We samed a profit after tax of INR

4412, 75 lakhs for the FY ended on Manch 31, 2018,

Company's management:

Piease see below a briel biography of the Direclors:

1. Mr. Shiv Prakash Mittal, holds a bacheor's degree in schance from the University of Caloutta. He is one of the
feureders. of Greenply industries Limited, He was also associated with Kitpdy Induséries Limded for 21 (twenty-
one) years. Ha has over Birty years of exparience in the fields of production and marketing in plyweod, laminates,
MDF and alied products

2. Mr.Shobhan Mittal hoids a bachedor degres in business dministration and was Joint Managing Director & CEQ
of Greenply Industries Lid. He possessas over 10 (len) years of axpanance in business administration and
marketing siretegy. He was ingiumental in setting-up of the MOF units of the Company al Pantnagar,
Uttarakhand as well as al Chitioar, Andhra Pradesh. After successiuly straamiining the Pantnagar unit, be is
pressany involved in tha streamiining the operation:s of the Chilloor unit.

3. Mr. Salil Kumar Bhandari, an FCA, gradusied from Shel Ram Collags of Commerce, Delhl University and
Diploma in Business Administration from the All india Council for Managemeant Studies, Channai. He i the
Founder and Managing Partner of BGJC & Associates LLP, an audit and management consulting firm in
New Delhi, Earfier hehad held several positions in vatous onganization e.g..

* Former President of the PHD Chamber of Commerce & industry

» Chairperson of Society for integrated Development of Himatayas (S10H) and Child Fund India
«  Mambarof Task Foroe - Commission on Centre State Relations, Govt of India

= Managing Commitiee member at ASSOCHAM

+ Member ol Advisery Commities, Dept. of Company Affairs, Govl. ol india

PRE-SCHEME POST SCHEME Dirsctorship in saveral companies and their statutary commitieas.
Parficulars Amgunt (in INR] Parficulars Amaunt (in INR) 4. Mr, Mahesh Kumar Jiwrajka belonged 1o the Indign Forest Service, Maharashira Cadre (March 1, 1977 10
orized Authorized March 31, 200%) and ook voluntary retirement with efflect frem March 31, 2009, Amongst various posiions, he
Aty Cophat Coghel also was tha Inspeclor General of Foresis & Head MNorh-East Cedl, Ministry of Environment & Forests,
3,000,000 aquity sharez. 1,00,00,000 15.00,00,000 squaly 15.00,00,000 Government of Irdia. In his mary years of expenience, beskdes handing various important issues dealing with
of INR 1,00 sach shares of INR 1.00 each warious aspects of smvironmeni, hialso held the following positians:
L. L L. 1500,90,008 + Member Secretary, High Power Commiiee for the Morh Eastem Region, Constituled by the
J“““’-:’“h““’“d and ':mps”mw and Hoe bl Supreme Courl ol ndia (13981 2016).
0,00,000 equy shares | 10,00,000 122627985 sty T N mtg; Special lnveshigation Team, Constubad by the Hon'ble Suprame Caut of India (Febauary 13, 2000
of INR 1.00 each shares of INR 1,00 each )
Total 10,00,000 TM—._,H uuuuu 12,26,27,395 L] ng&rmkmmm Empowered Commtlee, Constiuted by the Hon'ble Supreme Courl of India
Sharehalding pattern of the Promoter/Promater Group (May3, ) _
5. No.| Name of Promoter Number of Equity | Percentage of paid + Member, CAMPA, Constituted by the Hon'ble Supreme Coun (May 2005 to 2018).
Shares in Company | up capital in Company + Presently, Mr. Jwrajka is the proprielor of SRDA Advisory Sarvices, specializing in financial, legal and
PROMOTER e ervinanment consulfancy
i Mr Shitv Prakash Mittal 5. Ms. Sushmita Singha, a post gracuata in English from the Patna Univarsity, has dona a Diploma in Urban Town
5 | MrGhebman bma | Tmnonn nEn Planning from the Human Settiernent Management Instituta, New Deihi, as well as a cerification course in
2 Mr Shabhan Mittal TEH8,000 0.60 i =
: FROMOTER GROUP Enhancement of Managesial Capability from the Indian Insttute of Managemeant, Lucknaw
Besides holding direciorship in several companies and their commilless, Ms. Sushmita Singha has also bean
3 Shiv Pracash Mittal and Shobhan Mittal on behall R : ; gk v .
of Trade Combines. i fm 11.702 380 954 activaly involved in several social crganizations and Govemmeant initiatives lka:
4 Wr Rajesh Mital 1,079,900 251 + Fommer Secretary General of the PHD Chamber of Commence & Indusiry
5 Mr Sanidtya Mittal 80,000 0.07 + Former Member of the UN Task Fors-Milennium Development Commities for Water and Sanitation
B Ms. Sanosh Mittsl 1,165,900 0.85 + [Farmer Member ol the Task Fonce on Tenancy Rights, Ministry of Urban Development, Government of india
7 i 680,000 053 + Farmer Member of the National TourismAdvisory Council, Ministry of Tourism, Govemment of India
: ::5' Eh::;“"::ﬂ + Farmer Mamber of Stat Supervisory Board. Departmentof Health, Govermment of Uttar Pradesh
BEiar : + " . n
1{I' Masier Do Mital mmmmmmmmdwmmmlummu
11 Mr. Saurabh Mittal N N + Sheigalsa onthe Advisory Board of BIGC & Associates LLP.
12 M. Usha Dfurka . - FMUy_Ms.mm&wtmmm NGO's e My Anchar Foundation, Sapra NGO, and INTACH
13 | Ms KiranLoyalka . S mdeoerapactt
14 M5 Neera Davi Bhartia B Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf, a Chanared Accountant by qualfication has been practcing as a Tax Consuttant for over
- 33 years. He had been managng Incoma Tax related matiers for over 250 companies spraad across Kolkata,
13 | MrSharad.Jaipuria Bangalore and Mumbai. Besides. he fhas also been appointed a5 an Additional Director in Loyalie IT-Soluions
16 Ms. Anjali Jaspuria . = Private Limited
17 Mr. Diip Modi - ) Rationale of the Scheme:
18| Mr.Shreevats Jaipuria il  Enhanced strategic ety fo buikia vible platiorm soley locusing on each of the businesses.
1L sanoesn - z (il Enable dedicated managemen focus, resources and skill set allocalion 1o sach business, which wil in tum
@ ”ﬁ-ﬂﬂm@!ﬂ_ i . z accelarate growthand unlock significant value for the shanehokders of the Company.
..E_.. mﬁ-’:‘%ﬁ%'i () Provide enhanced strategic Bexibilty in the operation of ach of the afarementioned businasses.
I h = - " "
B Prime Holdings Private Limied 12042800 o [} Expardlnghpnmn'baldumrmshmrtmarﬁnlhfmuﬁnuswﬂw
2 5. M. Managemert Privats Limilad 31 626,965 2574 (v} Access tovanous scurces of funds and investmends fior the rapid growsh of both the businesses,
25 Vanashree Propertias Private Limited 1,448 055 1.18 {wi) The nature of technology, risk, compatition ard capital intersity rvotved in each of the wndenakings of the
P Nirarian it ure Privale Limiied _ . Company is distinct from each other. Consequently, each undertaking of the Company &= capable of addressing
: Indepandent business cpportunities, deplaying different lechnologies and aliracting different sats of investors,
a RS Homeon Limited sirabegic partners, bandars and other stakahoiders. Hence, as part of an overall busingss rearganisation plan, itis
28 Ehowan Investmant Privale Limiled considered desirable and expedient io undertake the demeanger,
23 | Brjbhumi Merchants Privale Limied Change In accounting policles In the last three years and their effect on profits and reserves (Financlal
30 Educational Inngvafions Privale Limiled statements should not be later than six months prior to tha date of listing):
a Biijbhumni Tradesin Private Limifed Thera has bean no change il aooounling policies of the Company in the [ast ffves years.
e Mmmmma? L3 : : Details of its other group companies including their capital structure and financial ststements:
33 | DholkaFlywood industries Privale Limitad - g The faliowing kable enumerates fhe group companies of the Campany, brief descrintion of the business and natur and
34 Bluesiy Projects Private Limiled exteniofinterest of the Promoters:
35 | RKSFamiyFoundation : : Mo, | Mame of the Company Country of Mature of business |  Interest of
36 Trade Combines Pie Limied, Singapone - - Incorporation activity Promaters
| 37 Gresnkam Industries Limised i Geeangly Indusiries Limied Irvdia Manufacturing of Phywocd 060%
38 Himalaya Granies Limited - - and allied products
3B Greenply Leasing and Finance Privata Limiled - 2. Greeniam Industries Limited India Manufacturing of 2.10%
40 | Prime Properies Private Limited S— T
ﬂm,_ﬁ-m-&hﬁﬁﬂ”ﬂﬁim N - 1. Greenply Industries Limited
Top ten largest sharehelders of the Company: Capital structure -
5.No.| Name of Shareholder Number of Equity | Percentage of tolal Particulars Amount {in INR)
Shares held paid up capital __futhorized Capital
1 5. M. Management Pl Lid. 3,16,26,965 2574 16,041, 00,000 equity shares of INR 1,00 each 16,00.00,000
2 | Prime Hoidings Pyt Lid, 1,20,42,800 [ Total 16,00.00,000
3 Jwatamukhi investmant Holdings 1,17.87,720 2.61 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
4 Shiv Praikash Mittal and Shobhan Mittal 12,26,27,395 equity shares of INR 1.00 each 12,2627 395
on behall of Trade Combsnes, parinership firm 1,17,02,380 9.54 Tatal 12.26.27,395
5 HOFC Small Cap Fund 1,02.97 455 240 Corporate Infarmation
B SBI Conswumption Opportunilies Fund 53,60.262 437 Gesenply Indusires Limited ("Greenply”) was onginally incorporated as “Mittal Laminales Privabe Limited” on
T IDFC Starling Value Fund 45,70,000 17 Nowemnber 28, 1980 under the Comparias Act, 1856. Greanply was converted into a public limited companmy and
Consumer F 9 the name was changed fo Miftal Lominales Limited pursuand to @ fresh cerificate of incorparation dated
. LS wd T ) Navernber 1, 1984, Tha name was changad 1o “Greanply Indusiries Limited” pursuant to a fresh certfcate of
8 Westhvidge Crossover Fund, LLC 3,39.875 28 incorporation dated January 17, 1996 issued by the Registrar of Companias, Shillang, Its corporate identiication
0 Rapesh Mittal 30,749,900 251 nizmber is LAZ11AS1900PLCI03454. Its regstened office & situaled al Makum Road, Tinsukia, Assam -

TBE 125, Assam, India. Greenply is engaged in fhe business of manufaciuring of Plywood and allied products
Interestof the Promoters

Az on March 31, 2019, Shobhan Mittal bald 0. 60% of the equity shares in Graenply.

Financial information

Thee fofiowing information has been derrved from the consoldated financial stalements of Greenply for the last
Ihrea financial yaars:

[Amaunl in Lakhs)
Particulars As of As of Asof
March 31, March M, March 31,
i)l g 2017
Enquity Caital {face value Rs. 1i- per share) 1.206.27 1208.27 1.228.27
Other Equity 32208.12 BES242T|  TEO39ES
Revenuwe from operations and other income 141,542,681 17391373 1.78.566.91
Proft{Loss) afier tax T.967.16 11.082.71 12,544,537
Basi; e@mings per share (in Rs.) .50 9.02 1028
Diuted eamings per share (in As.) 6.50 9.02 10.29
Mat asset valua per share (in Rs.) T 71.56 E3.01 |

*Financizis stated herein ane on pre-demerger basis and no efiect o scheme of arangement has been given,
** Financials for the year ended 31 March 2019 are on post-demanger basis Le. alter giving the-effect of scheme of
arangemant.

Greonply has raised INR 5,000 takhs through Cualified Institutional Placement (QIF) in FY 16-17 at INR 257 per

share by issuing 15.45/525 equity shares of face value of INR 1 sach. Current market price is Rs. 155.05 a5 an

Octaber 14, 2019,

Theane ane no panding igations agamnst Gresnply which would have a matenal impact on the Company

Greangly is nol a sick company within the meaning of the Sick Industrial Companies (Spacial Provisions) Act,

1945 and no application has been made to the Registrar of Companies for siriking off the rame of Greenply

Theare are common purswts with the Company 1o the extent of manutacturing and saling of phywood and

decorative vaneers,

List of Diseclars of Gresnply:

1. Rapash Miltal

Sarichya Mital

Susil Kumar Pal

inod Kumar Kothasi

Anupam Kumar Mukedjl

Sonali Bhagwati Dalal

Upandra Nath Chaliy

2. Greenlam Indusirses Limited
Capital structure

Particulars

Authorized Capital

3,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 5.00 each 15,00,00,000

Total 15,00,00,000

241,35 374 equity shares of INR 5.00 each 12,068,670

Total 12,06,81,870

Corparata Information

Greenlam Industries Limited {"Greenlam”) was incorporated as a public limited company on August 12, 2013

under CA 2013 wilh the Registrar of Companies, Shilleng. Its corporale identdy number i

L21016AS201IPLCIN1E24. IIs registered office s sibuated &l Makum Road, Tinsukia, Assam-TBS 125, Assam,

Iredia

Greenlam is angaged in the business of manudacturing of Laminates and afied products.

Interest of the Fromoters

AsonMarch 31, 2019, Shev Prakash Mittaiheld 2, 10% of the equity shane capital in Greentam,

1

Amount [in INR}

theee years:
Particulars FY 201617 FY 201718 FY 2018-13 From April 1, 2019 1o
October 14, 2018
High Price 225 38895 321.95 171.05
Low Prica 17485 258,85 M4.40 1310
Average Price 25561 301.85 18113 152 48
(Sokroe; www nsgindia, com)
Node:

1. Averaga pnce is average of dady average pces fov the perod

2. High and low prices are based on high and iow of the daily pricas.

Any material development after the date of the balance sheet:

The Composite Schema of Arangement (the Scheme”) batween Greengly and Greenpaned, and ther respeciive
sharshoiders and creditons has bean approved by the Horbie Mational Comparry Law Tribunal (NCLT), Guwahati
Bench, vide its order dated June 28, 2019,

The Compary has allofied 12 25,27, 335 equity shares of Re. 1 sach (indian Rupee one only) to the sharsholders of
Greenply whosa names appear in the register of members of Greenply as.00 the recond date i e. 15 July 2019, 1 {one)
equity share of Re. 1 (Indian Rupees cne only) each. crediled as hully pard up for every 1 (one) equity share of Re, 1
(Indian Rupees ona only) each held by themin Greangply.

M, Arun Kumar Saraf was appointed &s additional director on the board of director of the Company and Mr, Rejesh
Mittal resigned as a dinsclor of the Company on August 14, 2019, Pursuant & (hi resolution passed at the 2= annual
genenal meating of the shareholders of our Company held on Saptember 28, 2018, Mr. Arun Kumar Saraf had been
re-desgnated as an Independent Director of cur Company.

Such other information as may ba spacified by the Board from time to time:

Mot Applicable

Financial statemonts for the previous throe years prior to the date of listing:

The Company was incorporaled on December 13, 2017 hence we have included the financial stalements for
FY 16-19 which alzo nciudes firancial numbers of FY 17-18.

Latest audited financial statements along with notes to accounts and any awdit qualifications:

Piease sae balow the finencial stalements for FY 2018-19,

The infarmation memarandum wil be available on our websie (www.greenpanel com|) and on the websies of stock
eachanges.

INDEFENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemeants

Opinlon

We have audited the accompanying consclidaled financial statements of GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(hereinafter refemed to as the "Hodding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Comparty end its subsidiary togather reflamed
1 2= “The Geoup”) which compnse the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, ihe consalidated statement of
Profit and Loss [induding ather comprebensia incoma), the consobidated stalement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash Bows statement for the year (hen ended and notes b the consolidated financial slatements,
including a summary of significant accounting pabicies |harenafter nafernad 1o a5 “the consolidated financal slatements”)
In pur openion and ba the best of cur information and according bo the explanations given to us and based on the
consderation of repons of the other audior on separate financial statements of the subsickary redermed b in the ofher
matters section below, the aforesaid consoldabed financial statemants give the mformation required by the Companies
Act, 2013 {the "Act”) in the manner so required and give & true and fair view in confomity with Indian Accounting
Standards ('Ind AS') prescribed under secBon 133 of the Act read with relevant rules made thereunder, a5 amended
and other accounting principles generally accepled in India, of their consclidaled state of affairs of the Group as al
March 31, 2019, the consolidaled tolal comprebansive income, conselidatied changes in equity and its consoldated
icash flows for the yaar anded on thal dale.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Slandards on Audiing (Shs)
specified under secfion 143{10) of e Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Augitor's Responsibilies for e Auckt of the Consoidaled Financia! Stafements secton of our reporl. W are
indapandant of the Group in accordance with the Code of Elhics issued by the institude of Chartered Accountants of
Ingia (ICAL} logather with the independence requirements that are relevan to cur audit of the consolidated financial
slatements under the provisons of the Acl and the Rules made themundar, and we have fulfilled our other sthical
responsibilities in accordance with these regurements and the ICAI's Code of Efhics. 'We believe that the audil
evidance we have cblained, and (he audil evidence cbiained by the other awditer in terms of thes report relerred %o in
‘Othar Matiers' paragraph balow is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolkdated financial stajements

Infermation Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Boand of Direciors is responsible for the olher information, The ofher infgrmation comprises
the information included in the Annual Report but does not inciude the consoldated financial statemants and our
audior's raport tharsen. The Annual Report is axpectad 1o ba mide availabie i us after the date of this Audiors” Report
O opinion on the consofidaled financial stalements does not cover e other information and wa do nof express any
o of assurance conclusion thenson

In connaction with our audit of e consolidated financial statements, our responsiility is 1o read the other informaton
and. in doing 50, consider whether the other information i materially inconsistent with consolidated financial
stataments of ouf knowladga oblamed in the audit or clhanise appears 1o be mabaraly misstaled.

If. based on the work we have parformed, we conclude that there i a malenial misstatemant of this other information,
wit ang required 1o report that fact, We have nothing o neport in this regand.

Respansibilities of the Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The: Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responaibie for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
lo preparafion of these corsolidated financial siatements thal give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated fotal comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash Nows of e Grou in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepled In
India, including the Ind AS specified under Saction 133 of the Act. Tha respective Board of Direclors of the Companies
ncluded in the Group ane responsible for mainienance of the adeguate accounting records in accordance with the
provisicns of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecling frauds and oher
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imequiasities; selection and application of apprapriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates thal are
rezsonable and prudent; and design, implamentation and manlenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that
ware operating effectvely for ensuring the accuracy and completaness of the accounting records, relevant 1o the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give & ke and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether duwa bo fraud or eor.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companias included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the abilty of the Group $o continue a5 a gaing concam, disclosing, as applicable,
miatters related Io going concem and using the going concern basts of accounting unless managemen! edthes ntends 1o
liquidate the Group or o caase operations, or has no realistic aernative butlodo so.

Tha respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Groug ane also responsible for oversesing the
financiel reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statoments

Our obgeclives are to obitain reasonable essurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due fofraud or émor, and ko issue an auditoes’ repon that includes our opinkan.
Reasonable assurence is a high level of assurance but is not 2 guarantee that an sudit conducted in accordance wilh
Shs wil atways defect a material misstatement when i exisis, Misslatements can arsa from fraud or efmor and are
considered maberial if, indvidually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be expected ko influence the economic
dacisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated finandcial statements,

A5 part of an awdif in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional padgment and maintan predessional sceplicism

throghout the audit. W also:

« Idendify and assess the rsks of mabenal missiatement of the consolidated financial slatements, whether due 1o
frand or amor, design and perform awdil procedures responsive to thosa risks, and oblain audi evidence that =
sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basi for our opinion, The risk of nol detecting a material messtatement
resuliing from fraud is highes than for ane resuling from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
oimissions, mismapresentations, of the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant bo the audit in order 10 design audil procedures that
afe appropriate in the circumstances. Undar section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsiie for axpressing our

opinion cn whether the Company has adequate inlemal financial conbrols system in place and the operating |

effecivaness of such controls.

+ Evaluaie the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of acocounting estimates and
releted disclosunas made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriatensss of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and, basad on the
sullit evidanca oblained, whether @ material uncertainty exisls relaled fo evenls or condiions that may cast
significamt doubl on the abilty of the Group W conlinue as a going concesm, M we conduds thata material uncertainty
exsts, we are nequired bo draw atiention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated firancial
stalements or, i such disclosures & inadequate, 1o madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
envidence oblained up to the dabe of eur auditor's repon, However, futune events or condiions may causa the Group
Io cease b continus &5 B going concem.

+ Evaluaie the owerall presentation, struclure and content of the consclidaled financial statements, including the
desclosunes, and whether the consolidated fnancial statements napresant the underlying fransactions and eventsin

amanner :al achhres far presentation

*  Dblein sufficient appropriaka audit evidance reganding the financial informatian of the enfiies or business activiies
within [he Growp and ILs assotale company o express an cginion on (e consolidated financial statements. Wi are
resporsible for he direction, supenasion and performance of the audit of the stancalonel consofidated firancial
stalements of such anfities included in the consolidated financial stalements of which we are the independent
auditars. For the other entibies or business activities included in the consalidated financial siatemants, which have
been sudited by the olher audilors, such other audilors remain responsibla for the direcon, supandsion and
performance of the audils.camied out by Sem. We remain solely responsible for our sudt opinion,

We communicate with those chamed with govemanca of the Holding Company and such ofher entities included in he

consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent audiors regarding, among other matiers, the

planned scope and timing of the sudit and significand sudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intamal

control that we identity during our awdit

We also provide those chargad with govemance with 8 siatement thal we have complied with relevant ethical

requinamanis regarding independence, and o communicate with them all relationships and ather matiers thal may

reasonably be thought o bear on our indepandence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Othar Matters

We did not audit the financial stalements. and other financial informalion, in respect of Greenpaned Singapore Ple.
Limited subsiciary of the Company whosa fnancial statements include tolal assets of INR 3,174.54 Lakhs as af March
1, 2018, bolal revenue of INR T040.65 Lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to INR 20,00 lakhs kr the year ended on
that date. These financial stalements and other information have been sudited by ofher audilor, whose financial
statements, other Enancial information and auditor's repon have been fumished 5o us by the management and our
opinicn on the consaidated financial statemants, in so far as il relates o the ampunt and disclosune included in respect
of the subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-sacton 3 of Section 143 of Lhe Act, in 20 tar as it relates o the aforesaid
subsidiary is based solefy on the reparts of the ather suditor,

Dur opinion on the consolidated financal statements above and our report on the Other Legal and Regulatory

Regquirement below, is not modified in respact of above masters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the
repar of the ather suditar,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143{3) of the Acl, based on our audit and on the considarations of the reports of the other
auditors on separate fnancal statements of the subsidiany company refemed ioin the Other Matiers paragraph above
we repord, o the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained ail the infarmation and explanations which [o the beat of our knowledge and belief

wara necessary for the purposas of our suds of the afcresaid consoldated financial stalements;

b} I our opirion, proper books of acount as required by [w relating fo preparation of the aforesaid consoldated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

t) The consalidated balance sheal. the consclidaled statement of profit and loss including (including statament of

ather comprehensive income), consclidaled statemant of changes in equity and the consolidated stalement of cash

fiows daalt with by this Report ane in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained lor the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d} In our opinicn, the afonesaid consobdated financiat stalements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133

of the Act read with relevant rules made thereunder, as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepled inndia

&} On the basis of the written representations recelved from the directors of the Company &s on March 31, 2019 aken i

on record by the Board of Direclors of the Company and its subsidiany incomporaled in India and the reparts of the
slatutory auditor of its subsiiary company none of the directors of the Group incomporated in India is diequalibed as
on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a dreclor inferms of Saction 164 (2} of the Act

I} With respect o thie adequacy of the inlermal fnancial controis over Enancial reperting of tha Holding Comparry,
refes b our separate neportin "Annexure A”ip this report.

g} With respect o (he ofher matiers 1o be included in the Aud®or's Repert in accordance with the requiremaents of
section 137{16) of the Act, as amendad

In our opinion and o the best of cur information and according 1o the explanations given b us, the remuneration pald -

by the Company boits dinectors during the year is in accondance with fhe provislons of section 197 ofthe Acl

) With respesct o the othier manters to be intluded in thie Audtar's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rudes, 2014, g5 amendad in our opinicn and o the best of our infemation and accornding to the
explanations given to 1= and hased on the consideratians of the naports of the other auditars on separaie firancial
statements as also the other financial information of the subsdiary, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph.

I The consclidaled Enancial statement disclosa the impact of pending liigabions & af March 31, 2015 on the
consolidated financial pesition of the Group -Relar Note 37 (a) o the consolidated financial statements;

ii. Provision has been made in the consalidated financial stalaments, a5 required under the applicabls kaw or

accounting slandands, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-larm confracts including derivative
contracts during the yearandad March 31, 2019,
il Thenewereno amounts requined o be transferred io the Imvestor Education and Protection Fund by the: Holding
Company during the year ended March 31, 2018
For 5.8, Kotharl Mehta & Company
Chartarad Accountants
Firm's Riegistrason No. (00756N

Sunil Wakhal

Partner

Mambarship No. 87254
Placa: New Deli
Daba: July 19, 2019

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of GREEMPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
dated July 13, 2019 on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

Repart on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2{f) of “‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section,

Our reporting on the internal financial controls over financial reporting Is not applicable in respect of ane
audited subsidiary Incerporated outside India

In conjunction with cur audi of the consclidated financial stalements of GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED asof

and for ther year ended March 31, 2019, we have audsad the Inlermal Financial Conlrols over Financial Reporting of
GREENPANEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED (heresnafier refemed o as the “Holding Company” or the “Company”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
Thia Board of Directors of the Company s responsibie for estabiishing and maintaining ntemal financial conbrols basad

on “the inlemal control over financial reporting crderia established by the Company considering the essenlial :

companents of intemal control stated in the Guidanoe Mobe on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial
Reparting isswed by the Instituls of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibiities include the design,
imgilementation and mainenance of adequate insemal financial controks that wene cperating efectively for ansuring the
orciarly and afficient conduct of its business, including adherence 1o the Company's policies, the safaguarding of its
assels, the prevention and delection of frauds ard emors, the accuracy and compigleness of the accounting reconds,
&nd tha timely preparaticn of reliabée financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 “the Act™).
Auditors' Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is b express an opinion on theintemal fnanceal controls over financal reparting based on cur audit of
[ Comparry.

We conducied our aud in accordance with he Guidance Note on Audit of Infernal Financial Controts Ower Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Nole®) and the Standards on Audiling, issued by ICAl and desmed 1o be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable o an sudi of internal financial conkrois, and, bath issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of indsa, Those Standands and the Guidanoa Mote require that we comply with
ehical requirements and plan and perfoem the sudi ko oblain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemad
financial controls cver financial reporsing was established and maintained and if such controls operated efiectively inall
mabenal respects.

Our audit rmvpives pardorming procedures to obtain awdil evidence aboul the adequacy of the inbemal financial confmis
systam over financial reparting and their cperating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls aves financial
reporiing induded chiaining an understanding of intemal financlal controls over financis! reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and tasting and evaluating the design and operating effectvaness of internal control
based on the assessad sk, The probadunes selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Enancial statements, whether dus bo fraud or emor.

We belleve thal ihe audil evidence we have oblzned and e sudt evidence oblained by the other suditors in tems of

their raports naferred 1o in the Dther Matters paragraph below, is sufficiant and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s inemal firancial controls system aver financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intermal fnancial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provde reasonable assurance
reganding the rekability of financal reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for exdamal

purposes i accordance with generally accepled accounsing principles. & company's infemmsal fnancial control over
firancial reporiing includes thosa policies and procedures that:

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

i 2in Lakhs
a} pertain ko the maintenance of reconds thal, in reasonable detad, accurately and fairy reflect tha transactions and
dispasitions of he assets of the compary; " Eqmw ﬂ:ﬁml Nate Amount
b} provice reasonable assurance thal transactions ane recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fnancial aall 017
statements in acoordance with generally acospled accounting prnciples, and tha receipls and expenditures of the CUCR . P 3
company are being made oniyin aconrdance with authorizalions of management and drectors of the company; and | Is5ue of equity share capital dunng the year 7 1000
c) provide reasonable sssurance regarding prevention or Emely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or Balance as at 31 March 2018 10.00
dispasition of the company’s assets that could have amaterial effect on the financial statamants, Cancaliad pursuand 1o schema of armangement {See Note 48) 17 {10.00)
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financiad Controls over Financial Reporting _ ‘Share Suspensa account - Allatment of equity shares pursuant b
B ol e 8 of Wianital et o Banisal ; fing the possibilly of schame of arrangement {Ses Note 48] 174 120627
collision ar impraper management override of conirols, malesial misstatements due b eor or raud may cecur and not Balence as 2l 31 March 2019 12
ba dalecied. Also, projections of any evalusation of tha inlemal financial controls ovar financial reporfing %o fule @ &) Other equity
penads ane subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financal reporing may become Inadequate Particulars Mate Hmmd:urp!ug] Ibams of OCI Total
becauseof changes in conditions, or thal the degree of compiiance with the policies or procedures may deleriorate. Capital| Retained | R Exche
Opinion ; rESErvE | carnings |urements|  nge
I ur opinicn, $o the bestal aurinformation and according bo the explanations, grven to us the Holding Company has,in of defined|  differ-
a#l malerial respects, on adequabe ineenal firancal controls sysiem over financial reporting and such imermal fnancial | benefit) ences
controls aver fnancal reparting were operating effectively 23 at March 31, 2019, based on the intemal control over fishitey ) on frins;
firancial reporting criteria estabished by the Holding Company consideding (he essential componants af intermal lation
control stated in the Guicance Note on Awdit of Infernal Financial Conérols Over Financial Reporing issued by the | Balanceras at 1 Apeil 2017 = . - - =
Institute of Chartersd Accountants of India. Total comprehensive income for
Oiher Matters. i the year ended 31 March 2018
Our afaresaid repant under Section 143(3) (i} of the Act on the adequacy and oparaling effeciveness of the internal Profit or loss (5.19) (5.151
firancial controls ower financial reporting, does not consider the subsidiany of the Company as i is nol incorporated in Total comprehensive income - (5.19) - (5.19)
Irdia. Balance as at 31 March 2018 -l (510) - (5.19)
Our awdit report i not qualified in respect of above matter, Batance as al 1 April 2018 -l (549 . (5.19)
For 8. 5. Kotharf Mehta & Company Amount adjusted pursuant to
Charfered Accoundants Scheme of Arrangement
Firm Risgistration No. DO0TSEN [See Note 45) 53,508.56 l . - | 59,808.56
Total comprehensive income for the
Suril Wahal yoar ended 31 March 2018
Partnar Prafit af loss .| 34574 . - | 345744
Membarship No: - 087204 Other comprehensive income
Date: July 18, 2018 {ret of tax) . .| 266 4008 g2.72
Plaxca: New Delhi Total comprehensive income | 3astaa| 2266 4008 | 352016
Balance as at 31 March 2018 59,B0B.56| 3452325 2266 4006 | 6332353
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019 i Significant accounting pelicies 4
Tinlakhs The accomganying notes farm an ntegral part of the consoiidated nancial stztements
Hote | 31Morch2018 | 31 March 2018 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
Assots 2in Lakhs
(1] Mon-current assats Yaar anded Yaar ended
{a) Property. plani and equipment 4 113,677.50 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(b) Capital work-r-progress k- A, Cash flows from operating activities
£) Other intangie assets ] 7238 Profit before Tax 1,238.45 {5.18)
{d) Financial assats Adsimenits for
i) Loans B 1,233.69 . Depreciation and amortisation expense 530334 i
{e] Other nan-curment assals 14 1,653.47 Finance costs 24834 -
Total non-current assets 117,016.37 Provision for doubthul debls B4.78 B
{#] Current assets Lass on saleitiscand of property, plant and equipment 878 -
{a) Inventoriss 10 13,445.36 - Indgrest income (68.03) -
(b) Financial assels Unrealised foreign exchangs uctualions {nat) (793.02) -
{i) Trade reoaivablas 1 4,561.86 . Govemment grants - EPCG scheme {refer note 22) (545.00) .
(ify Cash and cash equivalenis 12 1,956,598 507 6,453.09 -
{iil}) Cther bank halances 13 w54 . Operating cash flows before working capital changes 759154 15.18)
() Loans 8 232 Workdng capital adjustments;
(¥] Dervatives 24 10.38 [Increase)idecrease in irade and other receivables 11,854.24) .
(i) Othr firanciad assets 15 2.918.69 (Increase)/dacreass in mvenlones (3.147.38) .
{c) Othar current assals 1B 58241 - Increasel{decrease] in frade end other payables [546.81) 0.26
Tolal current assels 28,778.96 507 {5,588.93) 0.26
Total assats 145,795.33 507 Cash generaled from operating activities 210261 14.93)
Equity and liahilities Income tax paid (net) (408.52) -
Equity Mot cash from operating activities 1,693.79 14.93)
(@) Euiity share capital 17 ‘ 1000 B. Cash flows from investing activities
(b) Eguity share capital suspanss 17A 1226.27 - Acquisition of proparty, plant and equipment {10,541.02) -
ie) Cther equity 18 63,323.53 5.19) Proceeds from sale of proparty, plant and equipment 7.40 .
Total equity 54,543.80 481 o | Interest received B9.03 -
Liabilities © | Met cash used in investing activities {10,464 58]
{1) Non-currant abilites . Cash flows from financing activities
{a) Fnancial Eabilities Proceeds from issua of share capilal . 10.00
(i) Bormowings 19 45,966.53 Proceeds from long term bomowings 1327559 .
(i Othver financial fakiites 20 1,253.00 Presaeds from shon barm bomowings (net) 142919 -
ft) Provisions 2 790,82 Repaymen of long tarm bomowings {1,835.68) -
fe) Delemed tax kabilites {net) 35 1,205.30 Interest pard (2.650.24) a
(d] Oher non-currant kabilties 2 45195 . Procassing fees paid far long term bormowings (12.55) -
Total non-current liabilities 53,745 60 F * | Net cash fiow from financing activities 10,206.23 0.00
(2] Current Habifities © | Mot (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents 143543 507
{a) Financial kabliities Cash and cash aquivalerts & 1 Aprd 2018 {refer note 12) 507 "
{i) Bomrowings ] 4.541.70 Add: Amound adjusted pursuant 1o Schame of Arangamend
(i} Trache payables n S Nate 48) 51609 -
{okal pulstanding dues of miao enterprises Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2014 [refer note 12) 1,956.58 507
and small enterprises 081 Nodes:
{otal cutstanding dues of crociiors oihas [ Consolidaled Stalement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect mathod as sef oul in Ind AS 7
than micrg enterprises and smal enterprises B,156.08 0I5 specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
(i} Other financial lishiites ] 10,873.37 f (i) Acquisition of m. Ilafﬂ and equipment includes mavements of capital work-in-progress (including capital
{b) Other curren liabilites %5 3,354.35 gif || § - aowanoee md WAy cap gocce) dufe By
Lx ; © [y Change in liabilifes arising from financing activiies:
(6 Provisions # 18n Particulars A3 00 Adjusted | Cash fiows | Fairvalue |  Ason
() Curreent tax liabilties ned) 9 B89 ; MMarch | pursuant o changes | 31 March
Total cument lizbilities 2T,489.53 0.6 2018 Scheme of 013
Total liabllities 8124553 026 Arrangmant
Total squity and abilities us.jr:m 507 E— (Sos Nole 48)
?:'“"“““"““ﬂ P;:" e 3 curtent maturifies (Wote 15) - 4303871 | 143093 | (36998 | 5410968
accompanying notes form an integral part o -
iatnd i Current Boerowings (Mote 19} 3,125 1,420.19 4541.70
. Motes to the consolidated financial stabements for the year ended 31 March 2015
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 " 1. Reportingentity
¥in Lakhs Greenpanel ndustres Limied {‘tha Holding Company’ of the ‘Company') is & public company damicled in Intia
Note Year ended Year anded heving its registered offica situated at Makum Road, P.O, Tinsukia, Assam-T85125, India. The Holding Company
3 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 has been incorporated wder the provisions of the Indian Companses At The Holding Comparry 5 primandy
L Revenue from oparations % 5991139 = invobved in manufacturing of phywood, medium density fibre boards (MOF) and alied products. The Holding
I, Otherincome a7 1,260.50 Company has an gverseas wholly cwned subsidiary company Greenpanel Singapore Pte. Limited {formery
. - : kncrwn as Gresnply Trading Pe. Limited), incorporated in Singapons, = engaged int trading of Medium Density
Bl Total income 1+l 61,180.59 | Fibreboards and afiied products, callectively refermed Inas "Bie Group”,
V. Expanss 2 Basis of praparation
Cost of materials consumed ] 29,006.74 a  Statementof compliance
Purctiage ot siook i e 2 a1a4 These consolkdated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Acocounting Standards (Ind AS)
Changes in inventories of finished goods. a3 per the Companses {indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 as amended, notfied under Section 133 of the
work-n-progress and stock in irade 0 (4,210.18) Companies Act, 2013 {'Act) and ather relevant provisions ol e Acl
Emplayees banalils expense kil BOT5.65 The consolidated financial statements ane autharised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Hodding Company
Financa costs 12 246324 al their miseting held on 19 July 2019,
Deprecialion and amortisation expensa kx| 5303.34 . : The details of the Company's accounting poficies are included in nate 3
Other axpenses u 1B.427.41 5.18 . b Functional and presentation currency
Total expenses (V) 59,042 44 E10 These consolidated financial stalements are preserded in Indian Rupees (T), which is also the Holdng
V. Profit befors tax (H-IV) 1.230.45 519 Compeny's functional curmency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless cthenwise
Gumnt tax (a41) i c. Basisof measurement
. mm i - a::: The consalidated financialstatements have been prapared on historical cost basis, except o the foflowing tems:
BLL i 2 . Hems Measurement
V&, Proftfor the yeeriv¥l) sl B9 Derivate financial instruments Fair valua
HHLMmmnthwmm Certain financal assets and financial liabfites | Fair valug
SRS VLW OE A Thcinead] _ Nt dafined bunafit {asset) | Babiliy Prasent value of defred bonefil obligations
subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of dufined beneM Fabiityfasse) um G :‘“ “““le . e — -
- : n preparing consclidated financial slatements, managemen judgements, estmates
mimmlﬁwm“lmm (1247) assumptions that affect the application of accounting policikes and the reported amounts of assets, Eabilibes,
income and expensas, Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated
Nat ather comprehensive income not to ba financial statements ane prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss .66 ing assumptions an reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisians o accounding estimates am recognised
Heamis that will be reclassified subsequently prospectively,
to profit o loss: Judgements
Exchange differances in iransiating financial Infarmation about judgements made in spplying accounfing policies that have th most significant effects on the
stalements of fareign operations 40.06 amounts recognised in the consolidaled financial stalements ks included in note 38 - lease ciassification.
Net ather comprehensive income to be reclassified Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Subescuently 1o profi or s st Informeation about assumpions and estimalion uncartainties that have & signiicant risk of resuing in @ material
Other comprahensive incama for the year {net of tax) 6272 adpustment in the consolidates fnancial statements for the every period ended 5 included in the following rates:
[X. Total comprehensive income for the year (VI 3.520.16 [5.49) - Mote 4 —useful ife and residual valse of propary, plant and equipment.
¥, Eamings per equity share 36 - Note 31 - measurement of defined benefil phligations: key actuarial assumptions;
[‘r‘m:_rmnlmmrwreﬂud\ = Nabe 35 ~ recogriton of defermed tax assets,
{prenious year & 1 each]| - Male 37 — recognition and messurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
- Basic (1) 282 {0.52) likelihood and magrituda of an cutfiow of resources:
- Dl (%) 282 (0.52) = Mobe 42 - impairmant of financial assets: key assumplions wsed in extimaling recoverable cash Bows
Significant accounting policies 3 e Measurement of fair values
The accompanying nates form an integral part of B A number of the Group's accounting poficies and dsciosures require the measurement of fair vaues, for bath
cansoidated fnancal statements financial and ron-financal assets and labilites

contimaed on next page...
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The Greup has an established confrol framework with respect to the measurement of far values. The

management has overall responsibility for aversesing all signiSicant fair value measuremants and it ragularly
reviaws significant unobsarvable inputs and valuation adusiments, IF thind party indormation, such as broker
quolies o pricing services, is used o measuns fair valies, then the management assesses the evidence oblained
from the third parfies fo support the condiusion that these valuaions maed the requirements of Ind AS, incliding
thia lewed in the Tairvalue hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Significan! valuaton Bsues ane reported lothe Holding Compary's awdit commities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fer valua hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valustion
techniques as fallows:

- Lervel 1: quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabiities.

- Lewel 2: inpuls other than quoted prices included in Level 1 thal are observable for the asset or Eability, either
directly {i.e. as prices) or indinsclly (|.e. derhved from prices).

- Liewed 3:inputs for the asset of liabiity that ara not based on obsanable market data (unobsarvable inputs),
When mesasuring the [air value of an asset or a liabdity, the Group uses observabla market data as far &5 possible.
If thee inputs weed b measune the fair value of an asset or a liabdity 2l Into diffeanent levels of the tair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is calegonised in its entirety in the same level of the far value
hierarchyas the lowestleved inpul that s significant o the entire measunsment.

The Group recognises transfers bebwean leveds of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporing perod during
which the changa has occumed,

Further inSormalion aboul he assumplions made in maasuning falr valises i included in nole 41,

Basis of consolidation

() Subsidiaries

These Consclidated financial stabements ane prepared on the Tollowing basts in accordance with knd AS on
"Consolidated Financial Statements’{ind A5 - 110), specified under Section 133 of he Companies Adt, 2013
Subsidianes s entities controlled by the Group, The Group controts an entity when il is expased i, or has nghts
o, variabiba returns from its invobrameant with the enfity and has the abilty [0 affect thasa retums theough its power
over the enfity, The financial statements of subsidiary are included in the Consciidated financial stiatements from
thia date on which contrel commences unbl the date an which conlrol ceases. Subsidianies considersd in the
Consoldated financial statements ara:

Name of the Company Country of Incorporation Percentage of Holding
Currentyear | Previousyear
Greenpanal Singapore Pla, Limited Singapare 100% Hil
{Ii} Loss of control

When the Group losses condrol over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabiities of the subsidiary, and
olher compaonents of equity, Any inleres! retained in the fomer subsidzary is measured at fir value al the date the
caontmol is lost Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated stetement of profil or loss.

(1) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

The financial statemants af the Holdng Company and #s subsidiaries usad in the consolidation procadures are
drawnupio the same reporing dateie 31 Manch 2019,

The: financial statemants of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a ine-by-line
basis hy adding fogather the book values of B items of assets, liablities. income and expanses.

Indra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses ansing from intragroup
transactions, ane slimnated. Urrealised gaing arising from transactions wilh subsidiacies ane eliminaled against
fthe imvastment o the exfiend of the Groug's infarest in the investes. Unraalised logses are elimnated in the same
way a3 unrealised gaing, but only bo the extent that there is no evidence of impaiment.

Significant accounting policies

Currentand non-current classification

Al assets and lablities are classified as cumment or non-current as per the Group’s nomal operating cycle and |

ather criteria zet outin the Schadule 1l o the Act.

Assets

Anassetis classified as cumen when & satshes any ol the foflowing crileria:

i} itisaxpactsd o berealised in, or s intended for saleor constmption in e Groun's nommal oparating cycle:

(i) itisheld primeanly bor the purpose of being traded;

(i) ites expached 1o be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; of

(i) ifis cashar cash equivalent uniass it is restricted from baing exchanged o used o satle @ liability for at laast
12 moniths after the reporting date.

Currant assals incude cument portion of non-cusment Enancsl assals.

All other assets ane dassified as non-cusment.

Liabdlities

Afiabilty is classified a8 cuenent when @ satisfies any ol the following criteria:

{i) itis expected o be settiad in the Group's nommal operating cycle;

{iih  itls held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

i} i due io be setded within 12 manths after the reporting date: o

{iv) tha Company does not have &1 unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the reporting date. Tenms of a liability thal could, al the aption of the counterparty, resullin ils satfemant
by the isswa of equety instruments. do nol affect its clessification.

Current iabiites include curnent portion of non-cisrent financial kabilibes.All csher kabilities are classified as
non-curment Deferred tax aesats and liabdities are dassified as non-curment assets and kabiliies.

Operating cycle

For the purpesa of cumentinon-clmen] clessfication of assets and liatslilies. the Group has asoeriaingd is nomal

aparating cycle as twelve manghs. This is based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisiionof

assels for processing and their reabsation in cash and cashequivalents.

(i) Foraign currency transactions.

Transactions in foreign cumencies are transizted inlo fhe respective funclional curency of the Group at the
exchange rates prevailing # the dates of the iransactions Monelary a3sets and abites denominated in foreign
curmancies are ranstated into the funcional curmancy at tha exchanga rale at Be reporting date. Non-monetary
assets and liabdities thal are measured a1 fair value in a foreign cumency are transtated info the funclonal
curnancy at the exchange rate when the fair vake was desarmired. Non-monetany assets and kabiites thal ar
measured based on histoncal cost in a loneign currency are ranskated al the exchange rale a1 the data of the
trangaction.

Exchange difanances ane racognised in the Consclidated Statement of Prafit and Lossin the parod inwhich they
anisa, excapl exchange differences on lang lerm foreign curency monatary ibems accounted for in accordance
with exemplicn avalled by the Compary under Ind AS 101.The Growp has exercised the option avallabla & i
under Para 46A of the Comparies (Accounting Standards) (Sacond Amendment) Rules, 2011 in respect of
accounting for fuchsations in foreign exchange relaiing to "Long Term Fareign Cumency Monetary liams”. On
transition b ind AS, aloresaid option = not available for lans availed after 151 Apdl 2016,

(1) Foreign cperations

The assets and kabilies of foreign operations (subsidiares) Iike fair value adjustments arising on acquisiion, are
transiated into INR, the functional curency of tha Group, at the exchange rales at the reporting date.
The income and expanses of fonsign operafions are translated inbo INR al an average rate, The Group has electad
ned b apply Ind AS 103-Business Combinations retrospectivedy to past business combinations that occurmed
bedara the transition date of 1 Apeil 2015. Consaquantly, the Group has ket the same classiication for e past
business combinations as in its previous GAAP financial statements, When & foreign operation is dispased off in
B8 entiraty or partally sech that contral, significant nfluence or joint control is lost, the cumulagive amount of
exchange dierances related %o that foreign operation recognized in Other Comprehensive Ingome (OCI) is

reciassified bo profit of loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its interestina
subsiciary bul retains contral, then the relevant proportion of the cumulalive amount i re-alocated 1o

Non-controling Inberest (NC).
Financial instruments
(i) Recognition and initial measuremant

Trade Receivables are initially recogrised when they are ongingted. All financial assets snd financial liabiities are. -

inftially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual pravisions of te instrument. Trade
receivables are mitially measured at transaction price. Afinancial asset or fnancial liabiity is initialy measured at
fair value plus. Tor an ilem not af fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL), transaction costs thal ane deectly
atinbutable toits acquisibion or issuwe.

{li} Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, & financial assed is classified and measured at !

Amoetised cast or

« Fair vaius through Proftor Loss (FYTPL); o

- Fairvalue through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCI),

Financial assats are nol recassified subsaquent o their inifial recogniticn, except fand in the period the Group
changes ils businass modal for managing fnancial assats.

Financial assets at amostised cost

Afinancinl asset is measured 3 amorted cost il I mesats both of the follkowing corditicns and is nol designated as
atFVTPL:

and

(b} the contractual terms of the financial asset give nsa on specified dates 1o cash flows that ane solely payments
of prncipal and inderest (SPPI)on the principal amoent outstanding

The effecive interest rale (EIR) method of amaortisation is induded in Bnance income in the Consofidated

Stetement of Profit and Loss. This cabegory penerally applies fo long-term deposits and long-lerm frade

recatvablas.
Financial assets at FYTPL

Al financial assafs which are nol classified and measuned at amortised cost or Fair value through other

comprehansive moome (FVOCT a3 desoribed above ans measunsd ol FYTPL. On initial recognition, the Group
mayy imevocably designate a financial asset that othenwise meets the requirements 1o be measured a1 amortised
costor gt FYOC! as at FVTPL Il doing 5o eliminates or sgnificantly reduces an accounting mismsatch that would
atheraise anse.

Financial assess: Assessmant whether contractual cash fiows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI).
For the purposes of thes assessment, ‘principal s defined as the far value of the financial assed on intial
recognition. 'Imerest is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the cred sk assocsated with
the peincipal amount outsianding dunng a particular pencd of tme and for olher basic lending risks and costs
(.- Dquicsty sk and administrative costs), as wed as a prolil margin,

In mssessing whether the contractual cash flows are soledy payments of principal and mlerest, the Group
considers the conlractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial esset contains &
cantractusal berm that cowld change the timing or amount of contrachual cash flows such that L would nal meet this
Iy making thes assessment, the Group considers:

= confingend events that would change the amound o Bming of cash fliows;

- ferrns Bat may adjust the contraciual coupon rate, including variable interest rate fealures,

- prepaymment and exdension featunes; and

- tewrns Ehat limit the Group's claim bo cash Bows from specified essals (e.g. non-recoursa features)

A prepayment featura is consistent with the sclely payments of principal and inlerest crtenon if the prepayment

amount substantaly represents unpaid amaunts of principal and interest on the pincpal amourd culstanding,

which may include reasenabla sddifional compensation for earty fermination of the conlract. Additiorally, for &
financial assel acquined ata significant disoount or premium i it conrachual paramaount, a featune that permits o
requires prepayment af an amount that substansially represants the confrachial par amount plus accrued (but

unpaid] condrachal interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for earty lemination)is

treabed a5 consident with this criterion If the fair value of the prepayment feature i insignificant al iniSal
Financial assets: Subsequont measurement
Financial assets at FYTPL: Thase assels am subsequenty measund al fair valua. Nal gains and losses,

[a] the pssef is held within & business modal whose chijective is to hod assats (o collect contractual cash flows;

Including any interest or dividend income., sne recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial assets a1 amorsed cost These assels are subsequently measured al amorised cost using the
effactive interest rale (EIR) method. The emorised cost is reduced by impairmant losses, & any, Interes! income,
foresgn exchange gains and lesses and impairmand are recognised in Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Ay gain of ks on derecogrifion i recognised in Cansolidated Stalement of Prafitand Loss.

Investments in subsidianes are camed at costin standalons financial slztements

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial labilities ana cdassified as measured 2 amorisad costor FYTPL.
Financial liabilities threwgh FYTPL

A financial liabslity is classified a5 at FYTPL If | & classified as held-for-trading, oc it is a dervative of B &
designaied as such on initial recognition. Financial abdities at FYTPL ane maasured at fair velue and net gains
and losses, including any interest expensa, ane recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. This
category alto nclutes dedvatve financial instruments enlerad into by the Group that are nol designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relafionships as dafined by Ind AS 104,

Financial liabllities at amortised cost

Other financial llabiities ane subsaquenily measured at amodsad cost using the effective inlerest rate (EIR)
misthad. Interest expense and foreign exchange gairs and losses ane recognised in Consolidated Stalement of
Prafit and Less. Any gain of loss on demcognition = alse recognised in Consolidated Statemant of Profd and
Loss, Inferest baaring loans and barmowings are subsequently measurad at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gairs and losses are recognised In Consclicaled Statement of Profit and Loss when the Sabilties ase
derscagnised &5 well as through the EIR amartisation process. For trada and alher payabiles maturing within ane
year from the balanca sheet dabe, the camying amounis approximales fair value due 1o the sheet maturity of these
mnslrumants.

Financial guarantes [iabilities

Financial guaraniees ssued by the Group are those contracts that reguing payment to be macde 10 reimburse the
hoidar for a loss il incurs becalss the specified deblor Fais to make a payment whan due in accordance with the
ferms of & debt instrument, Financial guarantee contracts ana recognised initially as a liability at fair value net off
frarsaction costs that are directly atiibutable %o the issuance of the quaranies, Subsequensly, the lability
measured at the highar of the amount of loss allowance deferminad as per impairment requirerents of Ind AS
108 and the amaunt recognised less cumulative amertisation.

{iif) Derocognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial essat

= whan the contractual rights o e cash flows from the finandcal azsat expine, or

- if transders tha rights to receive the condractual cash fiows in a trensacion in which substantially all of the risis
and rewards of ownership of (he Bnancial asset are iransfemed or in which the Group neither iransfers noe retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of cwnarship and does not retain control of the financial assat
Financlal labilities

The Group derecogrises a financiad liabdity when its conlractual cbligations ane discharged or cancelied, o
axpire. The Gioup also danecogrises a financil liability when its lerms are modified and the cash fiows under the
modified terms are substantially dflerenl, In this case, a new financial liabsdity based on the modified terms is
rescognised al fair value, The difanencs batwsan the cannying amount of the firancial kability extinguished and the
new financial liabiity with modifiad ferms is recognisad in Consolidated Statemant of Profit and Loss.

(W) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilibes ame offsat and the net amount presanted in the balance sheat when and
oniy when, the Group cumently has a legaily enforceable righl ko set off the amounts and it infends aither to sattie
them on aned basis or 1o realise the assatand sestie the kability simultaneously

{¥) Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments, such as forelgn cumency forward contracts, inferest rale swaps,
1o hedge s fonsign curency and interest rate risk exposunes. Darvatives ars inilially measured at fair value.
Subsequent b initial recognition, derivatives are measured 2t fair value, and changes fherein are recognisad in
Consobdated Statement of Prafit and Loss, Dervalives are camied as financial assets when the fair value i
positive and as financial liabdities when the fair value is negative,

Property, plant and equipment

{i] Recognition and measuremsnt

llems of property, plant and aguipment ane measured al cosl, which indudes capitalised bormowing cosls, less
accumutated depreciation and accumulated impaiment losses, fany,

The cost of an Hem of propery, plant and equipment comprises it purchasa prics, inchuding import duties and
non-rafundable purchase laxes, afer deducting frade discounts and rebates, any directly atiributable cost of
Bringing the item 1o its woeking conciSon for it intended use and estimaled costs ol dismantfing and remoxing the
fam and reslonng the st on which itis located.

The cost of a seif-construcied em of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of matenats and direct
labour, any other costs dinectly atiributable to Bringing the Hem 1o working condition for Bs intended use, and
eslimated costs of dismanSing and removing the Bam and resloding the s8e on which itis located.

Bomowing costs directly afiributable to the acquisition or construction of those qualying propesty, plant and
equipmen, which necassarily take a substantial pariod of time 1o get ready for heirnbended =8, an capitalsad.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different usaful ives, then thay ane accounted
for as separate components of property, plant and equipment.

A fmad asset is elminated from the financial statemenits on disposal orwhen no further benefilis axpacied from s
use. Any gain of loss on disposal of an jtem of property, pland and equipmend s recognised in Consolidatad
Staternent of Profit and Loss. Property, plant and equipment undar constrsction are disclossd as Capital work-n-
progress, Assets refred from active use and held for disposal are stated at the lower of their et book value and
fair visue bess cost o sell and shown under 'Current assets’,

Foreign currency exchange diffarences on ioans wsed for purchases of property, plant and equipment prior o
1 April 2018, are conBinued I be capitalised ag per policy staled in note 3{b) above.

() Subseguent expenditung

Subsequent expenditura i capitalised andy If il s probable that the fulure economic benefis associated with the
expanditure will fow o the Group. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurmed.

(il Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation for the year ks mecognised in the Consolidaled Statemant of Prafit and Loss.
Dapreciation is cabcutated on cost of Rems of property, plant and equipmen less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lhves wsing the straight line method over he usatul lves of assats, in the mannar
specifiedin Parl C of Schedule |lof the Act.

Assals acquired under finance lease ang depreciated aver the shorer ol the lease lerm and their wseld e unless
# is reasonably cartain that fhe Group will obitain ownership by the end of the lease farm. Freehold land is nof
depraciated. Leasehold land (includes developmant cost) is amorfised on 8 siraight line basls over the pericd of
respective beass, axcepl leasehold land acqurred on parpetual lease. Depreciation methods, useful Bves and
residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as appropriate.

The estimated useful lives of fiems of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Assel Useful life as par Schedube i
Buikdings Ho bl years
Piant and equipments 151025 years
Fumiture and fixturas 10 years
Vehicles Bio 10years
Cefice pquipments 3o 10 years

Depreciaton method, usefd ives and residual values are reviewed at each linancial year-end and adjusted i
appropriate. Depreciation on additions (discard/disposals) i providad on a pro-rata basis Le, from (uplo) the date
onwhich asset is ready for use (fiscamedidisposed off),

Intangible assets

(i Recognition and measuremant

Intangibla assets ane indally measured al cost and subsequently measured at cost less acoumulated
amortisaton and any accumidated impairmeant losses.
(i} Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure i capitalksad only when il increases (he future economic benefits embodied in the
specic assel b which it relates. All other expanditure. including expenditure on internatly generated goodwill and
brands. i recognised in profit or loss as incurred,
(iii} Amartisation
Amariisation is calculated bo wnte off the cost of intangible asseds less their estimated residisal values aver their
estimated usah lives using the straighline method, and & included in depreciation and smortisation in
Congoldated Stateman of Profi and Loss.
The estimated useful ves ana &s folows:

= Computer software Syears
Amoriisation method, useful s and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
i appropriate.
Inventories
Invenitones which comprse raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, packing materats, stores and
speres are maasured at the lower of cost and net realisabla value.
The cost of invenioes is ascertained on the ‘weighled average’ basis, and includes expenditure incurred in
acquining: the inverdones, production or conversicn costs and other costs incurmed in bringing Bhem to thair
presant location and condiion. Excise duty was included in the valuaion of dosing inventony of finished goods, till
the implemeniationof Goods and Sarvices Tax.
Raw matesiais, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not writian
dewn below cost excepd in cases whene material prices have declined and It is estimaled thal the cost of the
finishad prodiscts will exceed thair nal realisable valee. The comparison of cost and net reaksable value is made
onan item-by-item basis.
Thea nist recalisabile value of work-n-progress is dalsrmined with neference 1 tha salling prces of relatied firshed
products.
In the case of manufaciured invenlones and work-in-progress, cosl includes an appropriate share of fived
production overhisads based on nonmal cperating capacity.
Net nealisable value is the estimated selling prica in the ordinary course of business, lass the esimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary 1o make e sale,
hesassmant of net realisabile value is made ot each subsequent repanting data. When the cicumstances Mak
previcusly caused imveniories 1o be writhen down below cost nd longer exist orwhen thene is clear evidence of an

incraaza in not realisable value because of changed economic circumstances, the amount of the wiite-down i
reversed

Iipealrrnent

(i} impairment of financial instruments: financial assets

Financial assets, other than those al FYTPL, are assessed for indicators of impaiment &1 the end of each
raparting pencd, A financial asset is credil- Impaired’ when one or maore avents that hawve a desrimental impacton
the estimated fulure cash fows of the financial asset have occurred,

The Group recognises loss allowances using the expected creditloss {ECL) model for the Bnancial assets which
are not fair valued through profil o oss. Less allowance for trade recervable with no sgnificant financing
component is measured at an amound equal to ifeime of the ECL. For all ather financial assets, expacted credd
losses are measured uniess there has bean a significant increase In credit risk from initial recognition in which
case those & measured a1 etime of the ECL. The amount of expected credil losses (o reversal) that is
requived o adjust the loss allowance al the reporting date o the amount thal & required o be recognised s
recognised as an impairment gain of loss in Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss,

In casa of trade receivables, the Group follows the smpiified approach pemitted by Ind AS 109 Financal
Instruments for recognition of impairment less allowance. The appiication of simplified approach does notrequire
The Group to track changes in credil risk, The Group calculates the axpecied cradit losses on Irade receivables
using & prowision makrix on the basis of its historical credit loss expedenca

When determining whether the cred risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since iniSal recognition
and when esSmating expectad cradit kisses, the Groug considers reasonable and supportable information thatis
retevant and availabla without undue costor effort. This includes both quantitafive and qualitafive information and
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analysis, based on the Group's historical experiance and informed credit assessment and incluging subsequent
infarmation. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amoniised cost are deducted from the gross
carying amaunt of the assals.

The gross camying amount of a ingnclal asset = writien off (either partialy or in full) io the extent that thare s no
realislic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when the Group determines tal the deblor does not kave
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash fows fo rapay the amounts subject bo the write-off
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement acthiies in ordar b comply with
tha Group's procedures for recavery of amaounts dus.

{if} iImpairment of non-financial assets

The Group's non-financial assets, other than imvenicnies and deferred tax assels, are reviewod al each reparting
dale 1o determine whether there is any indication aof impaiment. If any such indication exists, then the assef’s
recoverabie amount is estmated

For impairnent lesting, assets that do nal generate independent cash inllows an grouped 1ogesher ino cash-
generating units {CGLUs). Each CGL represents the smallest group of assals thal generates cashinflows that are
largety independent of the cash inflows of other assels or CGUs.The recoverable amount of & CGU (or an
individual assat) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value lass costs to 2all. Vialue in use & basad on the
esimated fulure cash flows, discounied (o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument
market asseszmentsof the time value of money and the risks specilic to the CGL o the assel),

Thi Geoup's cofporata assets (e.g. comparate office for providing Support bo various CGUs) do nof generaie
indepandent cash inflows. To determing impairment of a corporate assel, recoverabla amount is determined for
the CGLIs to which the corporate asset belongs. An Impairment loss is recogrisad If the carmying amount of an
esset or CGL exceeds its estimated recoverabla amount. Impaimment losses are recognised in tha Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss Impairment loss recognised In respect of a CGU s abocated first o reduce the
carmying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduos the camying amounts of the other
assets of the CGU (orgroupof CGUS) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of other assets for which impasrmient Iass has Deen necognesed in pror penods. the
Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication thal the loss has decraasad or no longer
exsts. An impaiment loss is reversed If there has been a change in the estimales used to determing the
recovarable amourd. Such a reversal is made cnly o the extent that the assel’s carmying amount does nol excead
the carmying amount that would have been delermined, nel of deprectalion or amortisalion, if no impaiment loss
had baen necognised.

Intangible assets with indefinie useful Bves and intangible &ssels not yet avalable for use ane tested for
impaimme:nt atbaast annually, and whenaver there is an indication that the asset may be impaired,
Non-currentassots or disposal group held for sabe

Mon-curmant essals, o disposal groups compnsing assets and liabdities are classified &s held for sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primartly through sale rather than through conbiruing use.

Such assals, or disposal groups, are generally measunad at the lawer of thair camying amount and fair value less
costs tosel. Any resultant loss on a dispesal group is afiocated first o goodwill, and then ke remaining assets and
kabilibes on pro rala bases, except thal o loss s alocated bo imventones, financal assets, defered tax assels,
employes benefit assets, and biclogical assats, which confinuws o be measured in accordance with e Group's
other accounting pelicies. Losses on inifial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on
re-measinamant are mecognised in profitor loss.

Once classified as hald-for-sale, infangible assets and propery, plant and equipmant are no longer amortised o
depreciated

Employee benafits

{1) Short-term employee benefits

Shoriderm employes benefil chiigabons are measured on an undiscounted basis and ane expensed as the
related sarvice is providad, A liability is reconnised for the amaunt expectsd to be paid e.0., under short-lerm cash
bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation o pay this amound a5 3 resull of past service
prowiced by the empiavee, and e amount of obligation can b estimated reliably.

(Wi} Defined contribution plans

Adefined contribution plan is a post-employment bersefit plan under which an entity pays fived contributions inle
Employees’ Provident Fund establishad under The Employess’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisons
Act 1952 and will have no legal or constructive obiigaticn to pay further amounts. The Group makes speciiad
manthly contribuions under employes provident fund [o Govamment administered providen! fund schema
Obdfigations for contributions to defined conlribution plans are recognised as an benefil empense in
Consolidased Statemant of Profil and Loss in the peniods during which the related services ang rendered by
employees. Prepaid contributions am recognised & an asset o the exderd that a cash refund or a reduction in
future payments is avadable,

(i) Defined benefit plans

A dafined banafil plan is a post-employment banefit plan other than & defined contribution plan. Tha Group's
grafulty benefit scheme |s a defined benef plan. The Group’s net cbligation in respect of dafined benefil plans is
calculated by estimating the amourl of futune benafit thal employess hawve eamed in the cumant and pror pedods,
discountng that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan essets. The calculalion of defined benafit
obkgaticn i performed quarerty by an independent qualified actuary using the projecied wnit credd mehod
When the calculation results in a potendial assel for the Group, tha recognised assat i Emiled o the presant value
of econamic benefils available in the form of any futura refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
1o the plan ('the asset colfing’). In ordier 1o cafcutate the present value of economic benefils, consideration is ghven
to &ny minimum funding requiremenis. The Group recogrisas all actuanal gains and lesses arising from dafined
benefit plan immedialely in the Consciidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

Remeasunaments of the net defined benelit liabity, which compriss actuanal gains and losses, the refurn on plan
assels (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset caling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other
comprehensive income (OCH. The Group delermines the ned intenest expense (income) on the nel dalined
benefi liailty (asset) for e pariod by appiying the discaunt rate used % maasura the defined benafit cbligation
8t the beginning of the annual penod to the then-ned defned benef liablity (assel), taking into account any
changes in the ne! defined berefil labiity (xesel) during the perod as a result of contributions and benafit
payments, Mat inleres! expense and other expenses related bo defined benefit plans are recognised in
Consolidated Stalementof Profitand Loss

‘Whaan tha benefits of a plan are changed or whan a plan is corallad, the reswiting changa in benefit that relatas to
past senvica | pas! service cost or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtaliment is recognised immedialely
in Consoddated Stalement of Profit and Loss, The Group recognises gains and losses on the setlement of a
defined benealit plan whean the setlement oocurs.

{Iw) Other bong-term employee benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term employes benafits other than posl-employment banalis i the
amount of fulure benefit that amployees have eamed in retum for their senice in the cument and prior penods;
thal benedt is discounted b determing Bs presen value, Such benefits are In form of leave encashment thal
accrua foemployees in return of their sanice, The calculation of other ong term amployes benefis is padomed
quarlerty by an independent qualified actuary using the projected ynil credit method. Remeasurements of the nel
defined benefit Rabilty, which compriss actuaral gains and losses, [he retum on plan assets (sxcluding interest)
and the efiect of the assel ceding (if any, exchuding inleresd), ane recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
[OCT), Ned inferest expensa and other expenses related (o defined benef plans are recognised in Consolidated
Stalement af Prafitand Loss

{¥} Termination benafits

Termination benefits are expensed o the earfier of when the Group can no lenger withdraw the offer of those
benefits and whan tha Group recognises costs for a restructuring. i benafits arenot expacted to be sestied wholy
within 12 manihs of the reporing date, then they are discounied,

Provisions (other than for amployee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as.a result of a pastevent, the Grouphas a present lagal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reBably, and il s probabie that an outflow of economic benafits will be required fo setfie the
obibgation.

Pravisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expandiure required ko sete the present obiigation at the batance sheet dale) at a pre-tax rate that reflects
cutrant market assessmeants of the ime valie of manay and the risks specific o th Eahifty,

The umwinding of the discount is recognisad as finance cost. Expecied future operafing losses are nof provided
fie:

The amount recognised as a provisian is e best estimate of the consideration required o settie tha present
obigation at the end of the reporting peniod, taking inlo account the risks and unceriainties surrounding the
obiigation.

Revenue

{i) Sale of goods

Effective 1 April 2018, the Group adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomers®, The effect on
adoplion of Ind AS 115 was insigniicant. The Group manufaciures and selis in phywood and allied products,
medium density fibeeboard and aled products. Sales an recognised when control of the products has
Irareztemed, besng whan the products are deliverad lo the dealer, the dealer has full discretion gver the channel
and prica 1o sell the produats, and there is no unfulfiled obligation Ehat could afiect the dealer's acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the spacilic lecation, the risk of obsclescence
and kass hava been translermed to the dealer, and either the dealer has accepted the products in accondance with
thee sales confract, the acceplance provisions have kapsed, or the Group has objective evicence that ail critesia for
acceptance have bean satisfied.

The products are oftan sold with relnospective volume discounts basad on agoregate sales over a 12 months
peniod, cash dscount on paymand within specified period, promaticnal gl on achieving specific targets, quality
claims if claims made in the specfied penod and other promotfional expenses such as bours and travel packages
I daaler, sic. Revenue from thess sales is recognisad basad on the price specified in the contract, nel of the
estmated volume discounts, cash discounts, quality claims and promotional expenses. Accumulated expenence
& used o estimale and provide for the discounts/claimsprovisions, using the expected value method, and
ravenus is only recognised fo the extant that it i highly probable that a significant reversal will nol occw. Arasfund
Eability (nested off with (rade recesvables) is recognised for expected volume discount payables, expacted cash
discount payables and expecied quality ckaims 1o dealers in relation i sale mads untl the end of repariing pesiod.
Prowision (included inother currand liabiities) & recognised for axpacied sales promolional expenses against the
sakes made undl the end of reporting panod. Mo element of financing is deemed presant as the sales are made
‘with a credi lerm of 30-80 cdays, which is consistent with marked practice.

{if) Rental income

Rental incom is recognised as part of olher income on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease except
where the rentals are stuctured ioincrease in fine with expected general inflation

{Hll) Insuranca claim

Insurance claim due lounceriainty inrealisation are accountad for on acceplance basis.

Government Grants

Grants from Govermment are recognised at their tair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grand wil
be recedvad and the Company will comphy with tha condiSons attached therslo,

Gavemment grants relaled fo revenue are recognised in the Consolidated Statemend of Profit and Loss on @
syslematic and rational basis in the pariods in which the Company recognises: he relaled costs for which the
granis are inlended 1o compensale and are retted off with the relaled expenditure. If nol refaled ko a specific
expenditure, itis taken as income and presented under "Other Income”,

Govemment grants relating to property, planl ard equipment are breabed =s defiermed income and are crediled io
the statenent of profit and loss on a systematic bass over the expectad usaful life of the related assel 1o match
[roteir with he cosss foerwhich they are ntended 1o compensate and presanted within ather income.

Leases

(i} Determining whether an arrangement containg a lease

Alincaption of an arangemant, [Lis detarminad whethe the amangemant i of contains a lease, The arrangement
i, or containg, a beasa if fulfilment of Ihe arangement is depandent on the usa of a specilic assetor assets and the
arrangement conveys a right % use the assed or assels, even i that night is nol explicitly specified in an
arrangernent.

Aincaption or on reassessment of tha arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consderation
required by such an amangament ane separated into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basks
of thedr relafive Tair values. il & concluded for a finance lease that il is impracticable o separale fhe payments
reiably, than an atsat and a Eability are recogrised &t an amount squal 1o the fair value of the undarying assel.
The: liabdity i reduced as payments are made-and an imputed finance coston [he Eability is recognised using the
incremenial bormowing rate.
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(i) Assets held under leases

Leases of propery, plant and equipment that transfer 1o the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured iniSaly af an amound equal o the
fwer of thesir fair value and the present value ol the minimurn lease payments. Subsaguent o initial recogrision,
the assels ane accounted for inaccordance with the acoounting policy applicable to simiBar owned assets,
Assets held under heases that do net transter 1o the Geoup substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
{i.&. operaling laases) are not recogrizsad in the Group's Bakance Sheet.

{iii} Lease payments

Payments made under operaiing leases ane genenally recognisad in Consofidated Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease uriess such payments ane structuned 1o increase in ling with
expecied genaral infialicn o comperdsate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Leasa incantives recetved are recognised as anintegral part of the total lease expense over the tem of the lease.
Minimum lease paymeants made under finance lasses are apportioned befween the financa charga and the
reduction of the outstanding kability. The finance charge ks allacatied to sach period during tha lease berm s0.a2 1o
produce:a constant penodic rate of inlerest.on the remaining balance of the kability.

Recognition of dividend Income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recogrised in Consolidated Stalement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the Group's
right o recaive payment is established.

[rierest income or expense is recogritsed using the effective inbanast metod, The ‘effective inerest rate’ is the
rate that axactly discounts estimated future cagh payments or receipts through the expected lifi of the financial
instrument to; e gross camying amount of the financial asset or- the amontised cost of the financial
fiaiity,

In calculating inlerest income and expansa, the effeciive intanas| rabe is applied o the gross camying amound of
the assal {when the asset is not cred@-impaired) or b the amortised cost of the Esbility. However, for financal
assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent ko Initial recognition, interest income i calculated by
apphying the effectva interest rate o the amortised cost of the Snancial assat. If the asset is no longer credil-
imipeined, than the caicutation of inberest income revers o the gross basis.

Ineomn tax

Incosmi tax expenss comprises of curmant b and deermed tax, Current tax and delemed ax is recognised in the -

Consolidated Statement of Profil and Loss excapt bo the exient thal i relates to 2 business combination, or ilams
recognised direcly in equity or n OCI.

(I} Current tax

Curent ax comprises the expecied tax payable of recervable on the taxsble income or loss for the year and any

adustment 1o the fax payable or receivable in respect of previows years, Thi amounl of curment lax reflects the

bes! estimateof the tax amounl expected o be paid o received afler cansiderning the uncestainty, if ary, related o
income taxes. | is measured wsing tax rales (and tax laws) enacted or substantivedy enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and curnen! tax liabfities ane off 2ot only if there is a legally enforcoable right o set off the
recognised amounds, and it is intended to realise the asset and settie the liabilty on a net basis or simutansously.

i} Deferred tax

Defiared tax & recognisad in respect of temporary differences between the camying amounts of assels and
liabiitie:s for financial raporkng purposes and the comespanding amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base),
Delerred tax is also recognised in respect of carmed forward tax losses and tax crocs. Deflered tax = not
recognised for:

- temporany differences arising on the inial recognition of assets or liabdities in a ransaction thatis not s business :

combination and that affects naither accounting nor taxable profit or loss al the Bme of the transaction;

- lemporany dierances related io investments in subsidianies, assocaies and joind arrangements ta te axtant
thal the Group ts abie to condrol th iming of the reversal of the bemporany differences and I ts probabie that they
will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable tamporary differences arising on the inital recognition of goodwil

Deferred tax assels are recognised to the exient that if is probable that fulure txable profils wil be avaiable
against which they can be used. The existence of unused b iosses is shong evidance that fusure taabia profit
may not be avaliable, Therefone, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group recognises a defierred tax asset
onfy o the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary difierences or there is comvinging other evidance that
sufficiant baxabie pralit will be available against which such dafered tax assat can be realised.

Diferred tax assats - unrecogrisad o recognised, are reviewsd at each reporting date and are recogrised!

resfuced ko the exdent that it is probabled no longer probable respectvely that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Defermed tax is measured 2l the tax rales thal ane expected Yo apply to the pariod when the assel is reaksed or the
fiahikity ks setthad, based on e laws that have been anacted or substantively snacted by the reparting date.

The measuremant of defierred tax reflacts the ax consequences thal would follow frem the manner in which the |

Group expects, 21 the reporting dabe, 1o recover or settie the carmying amount of its assets and liabwlities.

Defamed tax as3ets and liabiities are offset if there is a legaly enforceable nght to off set curment tax labiities and
assets, and they relate b income taxes levied by the same tax suthorty on the same taxebls enfity, or on differant
taxentites, but they intend 1o settie current tax Eabilites and assats on a nel basis of their {ax assets and labdities
will b2 reaised simultaneously,

In case of tax payable as Minimum Afernative Ta [MAT) under the provisions of the Income-li Act, 1961, the
credil available under the Actin respact of MAT paid & recognised as an assel only when and to the extent there is
comincing evidenca that the Group will pay normal income tax during the pariod for which the MAT credit can be
camied forward for sat-0f against the normal ta abslity, MAT credil recognised as an asset Is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and wiitlen down 10 the exient the aforesald corvincing evidenca no longer exists.
Barrowing costs

Borowing costs ana interest and ather costs (including exchange difierences relafing to foreign curmancy
boerowings o the exdant hat they ane regarded as an adjustmant o inberest costs) incurted in cannection with the
bomowing of funds. Bomowing costs drectly atinbutabla lo acquisition or construction of an asset which
necassarity [zka a substantial peried of time o get ready for their infended wsa are capitafised as part of e costof
thal assat. Other bormowing costs are recognised as an expansa in the period in which they are incurned

Whers (here is an unrealised exchange loss which is reated a5 an adjustrment o interest and subsaquently there

Is 2 realized or unrealised gain in respect of the sefiement or transiation of the same bomowing. e gain to the
axtent of the loss previousty recognised as an adjustment s necognised as en adjustment fointerest.
Share capital

Ordmary shares are classified as squity, Incremental costs drecsly attnibutable o the issue of ordinary shares are.

recognised a2 a deduction fromequity, nel ol any axeffects.
Dividonds

Finad dividends on shanes are recoeded as a liabdity on the date of approval by the sharehoiders and interim

dividends are recorded as a lability on the date of dectaration by the Board of Directors of the Group,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents intiude cash and cash-an-depasit with banks. The Group considers all highly liquid
investrments with & remaining maturify at e dase of purchasa of three manths or less and that are readisy
canvartible foknown amounts of cash b be cash squivalents.

Cash flow statement

Cash Bows @ reported using the indinect mathod, wheneby peolit for the penod & adjusted for the effects of
fransactions of a non-cash nature, any deferats or aconals of past or future operaling cash receipts or payments
and ibam of income of axpansas associabed with imvesting or financing cash flows. The cashfiows fromoperaling,
Irvegting and financirg actvites of he Group are segregated.

Earnings pershare

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing te net profit or loss for the penod atfribulable to equity
shareficiders by {he weightad average number of equity shares outstanding during the perod.

For the purpase of caloulating diluted eamings per share, the el profi or loss for the pericd atfributabla fo equity

sharehoiders and the weighled average number of shares outstanding during the pesiod ane adjusted for the

effects of al dilutive polenlial equity shares.
Operating segment

An cperating segment is a componend of the Group thal engages in business acthilies from which it may eam

revenues and incur expenses, Including revenues and expenses that relate Lo (ransactions with any of the
Group'’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is awailable. Al operating segments’
operating results ane reviewed regulasty by the Chief Operating Decislon Maker (CODM) o make decisions about
resources o ba allocated o the segments and assess ther parformance, The CODM consists of the Execulive
Chairman, Managing Director & CEC and Chief Financiz Officer.

The Group has currently two reportable segments namsly:

il Phywood end allied products, snd

ii} Medium density fitweboards and eied products

Determination of fair values

Fair values have been dedermined for messurement and disdosure purposes based on the following methods.
‘Wherne applicabiie, further information aboul the assumplions made in dedermining fair values is dsclosed in the
nites spacific b that assel or Rability

(i} Mon-derivative financial assets

Ner-darivative financial assets are nitially measuned &t fair value. I the financial asset is not subsequanty
accounbad for & fair value fhrough profit or loss, then the inial measurement includes: dinectly afiributable

transaction costs, These ane measued at amertised costorat FYTPL, Investments in guoled pquity instruments

arameaswured &l FVTPL
(i) Trade and other recelvables

The fair values of rade and other receivables & estimated al tha present value of future cash flows, discountad
al the market rale of inferes! &t the measwrement date. Shorl-lerm receivailes. with no staled interest rate are

masasired at the onginal imvolce-amount if th effact of discounting is immatarial, Fair value is determingd at initial

recognition and, for disclosure puposes, st each annual reparting date.
{iii}) Darivative financial [iabilities

The Group uses darvalive financial mslrumenis, siach as farwand curmency contracts and inferest rale swaps o i

hedge Bs foreign curmency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivalive financial instruments are indially
recognised al fair value on the date on which a defvative confract i enlered into and & subsequanty
re-measured &l fairvalue,

(i) Other non-derivative financial iabilities

Other nan-derivative financial liabdiies are maasured at fair valua, at initial recognition and for disdasure
purposes, at each annual reporting date. Fair value (s caloulated basad on the present value of future principal
and inserest cash fiows, discounbed at the marked raba of inbanast at the measuramen date,
Standards isswed but not yeteffective

Ind AS 116, Leases

Thwt Holding Compary is requined 1o adopt ind AS 116, Leases from 1 Aprl 20189, Ind AS 116 introduces a single.
on-balance sheel lease accounting model for lesseas. Alessea recognises & right-of-use assal representing its
right to use the undeslying assed and a kease Eability representing ifs obligation ko make keass payments. There
are necognition exemplicns for shar-berm leases and leases of low-value ems. Lessar accounting remains
simitar bo the curent standand - i.e, bessors continue b dassify leases as finance or operating leases. M replaces
existing leases quicance, IndAS 17, Leases.

The Holiding Company has completed an initial assessmant of the polential impact on its financial statemeants but
has neat et compiated its datslied assessment. Tha quanktative impact of adoption of Ind 45 116 00 tha financial
siatemends in the period of infial epplication s not reasonably estimable as al present.

The Hodding Company will recognise new assels and liabiities for its operating leases of land, vehicles and office
premeses faciities (s Note 38), The nature of expenses related to those heases will now change bacause the
Huolding Company wil recognise & depreceation charge for righl-of-usa assets and inbarest expensa on lease
labikes,

Previously, the Holding Company recognised operating lease expense on a siraight-ling basis over the ferm of

the lease, and recogrised assels and labiilies anly 1o he extent thal there was 8 timing diferencs betwesn

achual lease payments and the expensa recognisad.

&

10,

On prefiminary assessment, for leases other than short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the Hoding
Company will recognise a right-of-use asset and a cormespanding lease liability with the cumulative effacl of
applying the stendard by adjusting retained eamings natof taxes. There will be consequent reclassificalion in the
cash low calegeries in the stabement of cash fows.

Transition

Tha Holding Compary plans 1o apply fnd AS 116 initially on 1 Apel 2015, using the maodified relrospective
appraach, Therefore, the cumulative eflect of adopting Ind AS 116 will be recogrisad as an adustiment fa the
opening balance of ratained eamings at 1 4k 2015, with no restatement of comparative information

Thet Holding Company plans o apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of 2 lease on trarsion.
This means that it will appdy Ind AS 116 1o all contracts entered inlo befars 1 April 2019 and identified as baases in
accordance with Ind AS 17

Property, plant and equipment
Sse accounting policy in nate 3id) and (g)
{a) Recanciliation of carrying amount

Freehold | Bulldings Plant and | Furniture| Vehicles
land equip- and
ment | fixtures

Total

Cost (Gross carrying
amount)

Balance al 1 April 2017 . . - . . . .
Exchange diflerences on
translation of faneign

Balance al 31 March 2018 . - - . F 4 L

Balance al 1 Aprl 2018 - - - - - - -
Add: Amount adjusted
pursuant 1 Schema of
Amangemant

(See Nole 48) 4. T92.75
Addiions Ta1.14
Disposals discard -
Exchange difierences on
translation of faneign

EOTH.97 | 4153625
B,213.75| T2, 422.50
[32.30)

1,358.31
1,156.74

4.307.00 | 94419
g

(14.40)

HBmrAT
B1,187.55

(B4.65)

il

(1725)

1230 14483 252 159.65

Balance at

31 March 2019 5,531.89)12.292.72 113.026.45 2527.35 | 4,759.97 | 1,259.54 [140,300.02

Accumulated
depraciation
Balance a1 1 Apel 2017 . . - . ; - i
Depraciation bor the year - . - . . - -
Adjustments! dispasals . . . . . . -
Emﬂw'ﬂ 'ﬁlwm on
transiation of foreign

operations - - - - - - B

Balance at 31 March 2018 . - - . . . "

Balanca al 1 Apri 2018 . - - . : H 3
Add: Amiouri adjustad
pursuant 4o Scheme of
50T
203.51

517.80
161.60

(1436}

Asrangement

(Sea Nole 48) -
Depreciation for the year .
Adjustments! dispasals .
Exchange difierences on
transtation of faneign
operations = - - 41

1.868.65) 17 465.48
39052| 4,026.25
(21.78)

1,008 59
47641
12.33)

1817 042

Balance at

31 March 2019 <] LIS9.47 2146984 | TIETO

1,41.85

Carrying amounts (net}

A1 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2019 5,533.89)10,023.25) 92, 456.51 | 1,791.65 | 3,268.12 | 554.08 | 113,677.50

[b) Security
Az at 31 March 2019, properes with a camying ameunt of T 1,11,458.48 lakhs (31 March 2013: T Nij ase
subject to firsl charga o secured bomowings (sea Nola 18).

Capital work-in-progress
Sae accounting policy in note 3(d) and (g)
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Al the beginning of the year . s
Add: Amount adjusted pursuant o Scheme of Arrangement
| Soe Note 48} 73,4865
Addifions during the year 2,406.86 *
Capitalised during the year 75,376.18
At the end of the year 7933 .
Capital work-in-progress includes:
Expenditure incurred during corstruction pencd on new
manufacturing Faciity of the group:
Al the beginning of fe year = i
Add: Amount adjusted pursuant by Scheme of Arrangement
|Sae Note £8) 705814 £
Addiions during the year:
Finance costs 517.26 -
Employees benefits expense 28178 -
Legal and professional fees 236.22
Power & fued axpansa B21.30 -
Miscallanacus expenses 1871 -
2,044.47
Less: Capitalisad during the year 2,100,61 .
Al the end of the year - -
Naotos:

(&) At 31 March 2019, panaral borrowing costs capitalised during the year amounted 1o T 114,03 lakhs
{31 March 201 8: T Nil}, with a capitaitsation rale of 9.00%

(b} As a3 March 2019, proparbes undar capial work-n-progress with a carmyng amount of T 379,33 lakhs
{31 March 2016 T Nil} are subject to first charge to securad barowings [see Moba 18),

Other intangible assets

Se accounting palicy innote 3(a) and (g}

{a} Reconcillation of carrying ameunt

Technical Total

Computer
saftware

Cost (Gross carrying amount)
Balanca at 1 April 2017 -
Dizposalshwrile-off -

Balance al 31 March 2018 -

Bafance at 1 Apiil 2018

Add: Amount adjusted pursuant 1o Schema of Arangemant
{Sea Note 48)

Additiens

Disposaistarile-off Z

Balance at 31 March 2013 220 #

Accumudated amortisation
Bafanca ai 1 Apdl 2017 -
Amortisagon for the year 2
Adpustmarisl disposals

Balanca al 31 March 2018 - -

Batance & 1 Apnl 2018 a

Add: Amount adpsted pursuant 1o Schema of Arangament
[Sea Note 48) 104,58 .

Amprtisasion for the year 4475
Adustmenits/ disposals -

104.88
4475

Balance at 31 March 2018 14863 - 148,63

Carrying amounts (net)

Ab31 March 2018 -

At 31 March 2019 1238

Loans
[Unsacuned, considarad good)

Non-current
Security depotits
Loan fo employees

120168 -

123368

Currant
Loan o employees 3232 -

1.266.01

Current tax liabilities

See accounting policy in note (o)

31 March 2019
30.58 -

Income tam Rabifities

Inventaries

(Ve at e lower of cast and ned reafzabls value)
Sea acoounting paicy in nate 3(f)

3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Raw matenals 3.695.02 -
linchuding in iransit T 376,82 lakhs (31 March 2018 TNI)
Work-in-progress 242313
Finished goods 5418.79
[including in fransit T 1,336.32 Iakhs (31 March 2018  Nilj]
Stares and spares 1.909.42

13,446.36

Total carmyng amount of invensones is pledged a3 securilies

agains! borowings, reber nole 19,

The wrile-gown of inventonies io net realisable value duning the year amourting o ¥ Wil {31 March 2018: T Ni).
These are recogrised a5 expenses during the respective period and included in changes Ininvenlones of stoeck in
lrada.

11. Trade receivables
M March 2019 31 March 2018

Current
Unsecured
- Considened good 4,561.86
- Credit Impaired 326.38

4,888.24
Less: Lass for allowances
- Credit Impained 326,38
Nt trade receivables 4,561.86
Of the above
Trede receivabes from refaled parties 121127
Notes:

(8} Mo trade of ofher recaivabiles are due from directors or athar oficers of the group efther severally of jointy
with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies
respactivaly inwhich any dineclor is 8 partner, 8 direclor o a member,

(&) Informaticn about the group's exposure to credd and curmancy risks, and loss aliowances relaled o rade
receivables are disclosed in nobe 42, Provision as disclosed above is on case bo case basis as kentified by
{hia managamen.

(¢} For lerms and conditions of trade receivabies owing from relaled parfies, see node 38.(d) For receivebles
secwid against bomowings, sea nobe 19,

12, Cash and cash equivalents

Ses accounting policy in note 3(s)
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash on hand 19.97 0.3
Chagues in hand . -
Balances with banks
- On current eccounts 936,62 484
- On deposit accounts (with orginal maturities up to 3 monfhs) 1,000.00 i
1,956.59 507
13, Other bank balances
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Bank depesits due to mature fter 3 months of original maturities
but within 12 monttes of the reporting data® 28.54
*Pladgediodged with vanous govemmant authorfes as secunty
14, Dther non-cument assets
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
(Unsecured. considaed good)
Capital advances 20793
Others
Unmatured firanca charges 136.24
Leasehokd land prepaymenis 1,225.51
Deposits against demand under appesd andior under tispute 1470
Amouni due from sales lax authodities 69,04
1,653.47
15, Other financial assels
31 March 2018 31 March 3018
Current
Gavernment grants recenable 280273
Export inceritive racaivabie 18.95
Insurance daim recaivabis Ry ]
Inlerest Recaivabia 2
291869 -
16, Dther current asseis
31 March 3018 31 March 7013
{Unsecured, considered good)
To parties other than related parties
Advances for supplies 28819
Advances o employess 15.65
Others
Prepand expenses ET2E1
Unmatured finance chames T
Leazehold land prepaymenis 1831
Balance wilh goods and serdcs lax autharities 4,754.19
Incoene lax refundable .
582421
17. Equity share capital
See accounting policy in nols 3fg)
#1 March 2018 3% March 2018
Authorised
150,000,000 (31 March 2018: 10,000,000 equity shares of T 1 sach” 1,500.00 10000
* Increase in aulharisad capital is pursuant o scheme of erangesment
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Hil (31 March 2018; 1,000,000} equity shares of T 1 sach 10,00

{8) Reconcillation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and Itthmd.mhanpoﬂlnqm
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Number  Amount Number  Amound
A1 the commencament of the year 1,000,000 10,00
Add: Issued during the year . mumu 'rI:I.vI}U
Less: Cancedied pursuant 1o scheme of armangement
{Sea Nole 48) 1,000,000 10,00 % .
Al the end of the year . - 1000000 0,00

{b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Heiding Comparry has a $ingle ciass of equity shanes with par vaiue of T 1 per share. Accondingly, al
equity shares rank equaly with regard 1o dividands and share in the Holding Company's residual assets on
winding up. The equity sharsholders ane entitled io receive dividend &s declared by the Holding Company
from time to fime. Tha vating rights of an equity shanehalder on a poll {roton show of hands) are in proparton
{oits share of the paid-upequity capital of the Hoiding Company. Voing rights cannot be exencizad in respact
of shares on which any call or other suma presently payabie has not been paid, Fallure b pay ary amount
called upon shares may lead to their fadeituns. On winding up of the Holding Company, the holders of equity
shares will be enlitied o receive the residua! assats of the Holding Company, remaining after disiribution of
all preferential amounts, in proportion to the numier of equity shanes held

{c] Paticulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of fully paid up equity shares

31 March 2019 31 March 3018
Equity shares of T 1 each Numbrer % Number %
Greanghy Indusines Limied 1,000,000 100.00%

{d) MMWyMMMMHMMWUWMWMWMWBW
thoe saha of shares! disinvestmant.

{e] The Haolding Company for fhe period of five years immediately preceding fhe reporfing date hes not:
i) Adlotied any class of shanes as fully paid pursuant b contract{z) withoul payment baeing recesved in cash,
{ii} Allotted hully pasd up shares by way of bonus shares,
(i) Bought back any class of shares,
1TA. Equity share capital suspense
Equity share capiial suspense 1,226.27

Hobe: 12,26,27,395 (31 March 2018: NI equity shares of Re. 1 each, fully paid, h:belssuedp'.trsmmmm
o arrangpemant of Greenply Industries Limsted with the Hokling Company, (See Nale 48)

18,  Dther equity

31 March 2018 31 March 2015
Capital reserve
Al the commencement of e year - -
Add: Amount adjusted pursuant to Schame of Arrangement

{See Nole 48] 59,808.56
59,808.56
Rtained eamnings
1 the commencement of Be year [5.49) .
Add; Pro for the year 345744 (5.19)
345225 [5.19)
Other comprehensive income [OCT)
A1 the commencement of te year
Exchangea diflarences in translating financial statemants af foreign
operations 40,06 -
Remeaswrements of the net defined benefs plans 2266
6212 -
63,323 53 {5.19)

{a) Description, nature and purpese of reserve: (1) Capital resenve: The capilal resene & crealed on atoount
of the net assess transfarred pursuant o the scheme of arrangement. (i) Retained eamings: |t comprises of
accurmulated profil/ loss) of the Group. (3) Other comprehensive income (OCI). it comprises of remeasurements
of the net defined benefit plans on actuarial vatuation of gratuity and exchange GBerences n translating financial
statements of foreign operations,

compnied on nest fage..
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{b) Disaggregation of changes in items of OCI

1 March 2018 31 March 2013
Retained eamings
Exchanga dfferences in lransiating financial statameants of foresgn
operations 40.06
Remeasuremants of defined benafil liabdity (assot) 2266
B2.T2 -
18.  Borrowings
See accounting policy in note 3{b), (c) and (p)
3 March 2018 31 March 2018
Nen-cument borrowings
Secured
Term laans
From banks
Forelgn currancy loans 38,546,868 -
Rupes loans 13478.10 *
52,126.05 -
Liess: Cusrrant maturities of long lerm bormawings (refer nabe 20) 7,663.70 .
44 462.35 -
Loan agains! vehicles 198363
Less: Cument maturias of lan aganst vehicles (refier note 20) 47945 -
1,504.18 -
45,966.53 -
Current borrowings
Secured
From banks
Foreign currency loan - buyers credd 256.47 -
Forelgn currency koan - Paciing Credil 2143
Rupes loans - repayable on demand 1,688.81 -
2281 -
Unsecured
From banks
Channe! finance assurance facility 21065 *
Forelgn currency loan - bill discounting 159.68 -
Rupes loans - bill discounting 1,934.66 -
2,304.99 -
4,541.70 -
Indormation aboul the Group's exposies ko credd and cumency nsks, and koss allowances reiaed io bormwings
aredisclogad in note 42,
{&) Terms of repayment
Name of the lender Inmtarest Repaymaent schedule Yearof 3 March 31 March
raty maturity 2019 018
(i) Foreign currency term loans
Landesbank Badan- @month  Repayeble at half yearty 202829 3261119
Wurttenberg [EUR 420.71 Eunbor  rest 20 of EUIR 21.04 lakhs
lakhs {31 March 2008: Nil)]  +0.50%
Standard Chartered Bank dmonth  Repayable at quartery 2024-25 7.602.10
[USD 110 lakhs Libor rest: 20 of USD 5.50 kakhs
{31 March 2018; Nij) +1.55%
40,213.29
Unamartised processing feas [1,566.43)
35,646.86
(i} Rupies toem loans
HOFGC Bank Limited Iyear  Repayable ol quartedy rest  2024-25  10,000.00
MCLR  20of 400.00 lgkhs and one
tirrsr paymerd of - 2000.00 lakhs
Axis Bank Limited lyewr  Repayable gl quatedyrest 202324 2.500.00
MCLR  16of 156.25 lakhs
Stater Bark of India {yea  Repayable st quatedy rest 201820 504.00
MCLR  dof 126.00 lakhs
+.75%
State Bank of India 1yesr  Repayable at quadedyrest  2018-20 500.00
MCLR  4of 126,00 lakhs
+).T5%
13,504.00
Unamorised processing fees (24.81}
13,479.19
Total 52,126.05
{B) Datails of security

.

{a) Term koan from Landesbank

Videletter dated June 14, 2019, the loan is i be further secured by:

{LBEW) of T 32,611.18 lakhs (31 March 2018: T Nil)is
secured by exclusive charge on Main Press Line of MOF plant & Chittoor, Andhra Pradesh aiong with
any other movable fixed assets of the Holding Company, financed by Landesbank Baden-Wurilenberg,

i) Exclusivecharge over main press ineof MDF plant at Pantragar (Utarakhand)
i) Corporate guarantse from Greenply Indusiries Limited in favor of LEBW ol EURO 12 S million:

i) Debt Service Reserve Accour in EURCANR for one repayment instalment plus interest. pledged

oLBEW
{b) Otherterm loans ol 2 21,106.10 kkhs (31 March 2018: T Nil are secured by:

{i} First pan passu charge on immovable fed assets of the Holding Company al Paninager

{Uttarakhand} and Chittoor {Andhra Pradesh),

(i} First paci passu charge on al movable foced assats of the Holding Comparny axcepl the main prass
finé of MDF plantat Chitioe { Andhira Pradessh) along with any athar movable fived assets axchisively

chargad o Landesbank Baden-Wurttanberg.
(i} Second pari pessy charge on &l current assets of the Holding Company.

{iv) Due to stipulation from LBBWY the security of Main prest Bine of MDF plant al Pantnagar

(Utkarakhand) will ba exchuded subseguerntly.”

fc} Secured Loan agains! vehicles and equipments ane in respect of finance of vehidlas, secured by

hypathecation of the respective vehicies,
{d) Working capital lnares of ¥ 1,688.81 lakhs {31 March 2018: T Niljare secursd by
(i}  Firstpari passu chame on all curment assats of the Holding Compary,

{ii} Second pan passu change an immovable fived assets of the Holding Company af Paninager

{Uttarakhand) an Chiioor {Andinra Pradesh),

{iii} Second pan passu charge on all movable fued assets of the Holding Company except the main
press line of MOF plant at Chittor (Andhra Pradesh) along with any other movable Bxad assels

exclusively charpad io Landasbank Baden-Wurtienbarg.

{ivj Due to sbipulation from LBEW the security of Main press ne of MODF plant 8l Paninagar

{Litarakhand) will be excluded subsequertty.

(&) Foneign curmenty loan - buyars cradit of T 25647 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ Ni) is secured by letter of

cradithetier of undertaking issued by banks.
Nate: Refer Nobe 48 for defais on scheme of amangement
Other financial liabilities

31 March 2018

31 March 2019
Non-current
Secunty deposits from customars 125300
Current
Current matunibes of long term boerowings [refer note 18) T.663.70

Currenl maturiies of loan agamst vehicles and equipments (reler nals 15} 479,45
Interest accrued but not due on bormowings 106.27
Liabdlity for capital goods 240853
Emgloyse benefits payable 572 .
10,973.37
(&) There is po amound due and oulstanding 1o be credited to Investor Education and Pratection Fund as at 31
March 2019,
{b) Information atout the Group's exposune kb curmancy and liquidity risks related b the above financial Eabiltes
isdischosed inmole 42, ;
Provisions
See accounting polcy in note 3(i) and (j)
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Non-currant
Pravisions for employes benefits:
Net defined benefit Eabiliy - gratuily 459,26 -
Liaksity for compansatid absences 33156
To0.82
Current
Provisions for emplayee benalils:
et defined benest kabilty - gratuity 225 62
Liabdity for compensaled absences 157.41
383.03
Cther non-current |abilities
3 March 2019 31 March 218
Deferred income on Govamment grants 452995

Government grants have been recelved for the import of certain tems of property, plant and eqwmturdar

export promotion capetal goods (EPCG) scheme of Government of India, The Holding Company has cerfain

expor obiligafions agamnst such benefits availed which the Holding Compary will fulfll within the required time

peniod under the schems. For contingencies attached to these grants, reler noke 37
Trade payables

31 March 2018 31 March 2013
Dues b micrt and smal anterprises (Rafer note 48) 081
Dues ta other than micro and small anterprises B,156.08 025

B,1546.89 0.25

informattion aboud the Group's exposuna ba cumency and fiquidity risks related o trada payahiss is disdosed
I note 42,
Derivatives
Se accounting policy in nale ek

3. Employees benafits expense
See acoounting palicy in note X

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Salaries, wages, bonus, et 7.208.25 .
Condribution o provident and other funds 45201
Expensas related b post-amployment defined benaft plan 151,33
Expenses related fo compensated absencas 160.96
Stalf welfane expenses 10310
B075.65

Satanes, wages. bonus, elc. inchudes T B27.75 lakhs (31 March 2018 !Nll:lrelawwuummwmr

Notes:

(2} Defined contribution plan: Employee benefits in the form of provident fund s considened as defined
contribution plan and the contributions o Employees' Provident Fund Organisation eslablished under The
Employees’ Providant Fund and Miscallaneous Provisions Act 1952 i charged to the Statement of Profitand
Less of the year when the contibutions to the respective funds are due,

[b) Defined banefit plan: Retswment benefis in tha form of gratuty is considened as defined benefil chligaBons
and is provided for on the basis of thind pasty actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit mathed, as al
the date of the Balance Sheel. Every Employes who has completed five years or mone of service is entitied o
gratuty on tarms nod kss Evourabia than [he provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1572

(£} Actuasialvaluation of gratuity liability

Dafined benafit cost

M March 2019 31 March 2018
Current
Foreign exchange foeward conlracts 1274
Fareign exchange intenast rate swaps {23.13) -
(Assedj/Liability (10.38)
Information aboul the Group's exposure 1 interest rale and currency risks nelabed %o derivatives & disclosed
in mate 42,
Other current liabilities
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Statubary duss 652.92 0.01
Dalerred incomea on Governmenl grants 240000 -
Advance from cusiomers 301.43 -
335435 0.01
Rewvenue from operations
Sea gooounting policy in nate 3(k) and (1)
Year anded Year andesd
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Sade of products 56,262.47 .
Other operating revenue
Govemment grants
- Refund of geods and service tax and excise duty (raler nobe 47) 876,55
- Govemment grants - EPCIG scheme (refes nota 22) 545,00 -
Export incentives B4.02
Miscallansaus income 143.35
1,648.52 -
59,9113
Reconciliation of revenus from gale of products with the contracted price
Contracied price 62,466.51 -
Less : Trade discounts, volume rebales et (4,204.04)
Sale of products 5826247 -

Disaggregated revenue information

The disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customens as under,

Year ended 31 March 2018 ]

Segment Plywood  Medium Density Tatal

and allied  Fibre Board and
products  allied products
Type of Goods:

Finishad goods 14,116.15 4414632 5826247
Sale of products {induding excise duty) (A} 14,116.15 4414632 5876247
Revenue by geography:

- India 1411282 ITEBAE  51,380.98
- Dutside kndia 333 EATRIE 688149
Tatal revenue from contracs win customens 14,116.15 4414632 5826047
Year ended 31 March 2018 ]
Segment Plywood  Medium Density Total
and allied  Fibre Board and
products  allied products
Type of Goods:

Finished goods . .

Sale of products {induding excise duty) (A} . - 5
Revenue by geography:

=~ India P =

- Dutside kndia -

Total revenue from contracts with customers

The reconcliafon af the ravenus from contracts wilh customers and ather mmhglmm

Year ended 31 March 2010 |

Segmaent Plywood  Medium Density Total
and allied  Fibre Board and
products  allied products
Sale of goods (including excise duty):
- External customers 14,116.15 44, 146.32 58 162.47
- Inter-segment i Z .
Cther Operating Revenue 3412 161480  1,648.92
14,150.27 4576112 5991139
Inter-segment elimination . - -
Less: Other Operating Revenue {34.12) (1,614.80)  (1,648.92)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 14,116.15 44, 146,32 58,262 47
Year onded 31 March 2018
Segment Plywood Madium Density Total
and allied  Fibre Beard and
products  allied products
Sale of goods (including excise duty):
- Extesmal cusiomars . - -
- Intar-segment . -
Other Operating Revenus . .

nter-segment eiminaton .
Less: Other Operating Revenue "

Total revenue from contracts with cuslomers

a) Tmmmmddswmmbaﬂdmmwmufmwdh cusiomers and location of
customers. The Group's ravenue is recognised for goods iransferred 1 a point in fime, The Group believes
that the above disaggregation e best dapects how the ratuns, amound, liming and uncarainty of revenues
and cash fows are efacted by indusiny, market and other economic factors. Segmend wise nature, smount,

Erning and uncariainty of revenies and cash flows are desoribed below.

Halure of goods or services

The Group manufacheres and sales, phywood and other plywood-related
pllied products such as veneer, compreg, doors, ebc, Madium Density
Fibe Board and allied producss such as fibee beard, plank, el

When revenue is recognised
goods are delivered o the customer's warehouses

For Domestic Customer : Revenue is fypically recognised whean tha

For Export Customer : Revanue is typically recognised when the goods

e basis by the Group,

are delverad o the por of shipment
iﬁﬁmmmum Paymeni is recaived a5 per the agneed payment terms with cushomer
Obligations forreturnsand | Customers have the right fo natum the goods to tha Group, i the cusiomens
refunds, if any ane dissatishied with the quality of product which is determined on a case o

b} Forcontractbalances Le. rada recaivabies refiar Moba 11,

¢} The amount of revenue from contracts wih customers recogresed in the statement of profit and kass is the

contracii price.
Other income
Year ended Year ended
M March 2018 31 March 2018
Intarest on fived depesits with banks and others £2.03 -
LUinspent ExbiESes no longer required writien back 165,99
Foreign exchange fluctuaBons 1,021.85 -
Misceilaneous income 1283
1.269.50
Cost of materials cansumed
Year andid Year ended
M March 2019 31 March 2018
Inventory of rew malenals at the beginning of the year . -
Add: Amount adjusiid pursuant to Scheme of Arangement [See Nole 48)  4,651.15
Add; Purchases 208,050.61 -
Less: Imvendory of raw materials at the end of the year [3,695.02)
29,006.74 -
Purchase of stock in trade
Year ended Year ended
M March 2019 31 March 2018
Purchase of traded goods 876.24 -
876.24
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock in trade
Sew accounling pokcy in note 3
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening inventories
Work-in-progress - -
Finished goods . .

Add: Amount adjusted pursuant to Scheme of Arrangemant (See Note 48)

Work-n-progress 1,381.56
Finished goods 224633
362789

Closing inventories
Work-in-progress 241313
Firished goods 5418.79
784192
Effiect of foreign axchange Buctuations 385
(4,210.18)

Currant sanios cost 106.24
Inferest expensa on defined benefi obligation 45.08
Dafined benafit cost in Statement of Profit and Loss 151.32
Rameazurements lrom financal assumptions B0
Remeasurements from expenence adusiments [42.92)
Defined benafit cost in Other Comprehensive Incoma (OCH) (34.82)
Total defined benefit cost in Statement of Profit and Loss and OCI 116.50
Movement in defined benefit obligation

Batance af the baginning of the year 602.65
Inderest cosl 106.24
Current service ot 45.08
Actuarial (gams) losses recognised in other comprehensive income (34.82)
Benelits paid [34.27)
Balance af the end of the year 68488
Sensitivity analysis

Salary escalation - Increase by 1% T37.65
Salary escalation - Decreass by 1% 639.20
'Wilhdrawal rates - Increasa by 1% B&0.00
Withdrawad rates - Decrease by 1% 679.88
Discount rabés - Increase by 1% 539,32
Discount rates - Decrease by 1% 73784
Actuarial assumplions

Martality table LALM 2006-2008
Déscount rate (per annum) 7.70%
Rate of escatation in salary (per annum) 6.00%
Withdrawal rale 1% - 8%
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) s

() Amaourd Incumred &5 expense for defined contribution o Providant Fund fs @ 330,33 takhs (31 March 2018
T Nl

32. Finance costs
Sea accounting policy n nate 3p}

Year ended Year ended
1 March 2019 31 March 2018
Inferest experss on finarcal Eabiltes measured at amortised cos! 2,326.39 .
Exchange difference regarded as an adustment to borrowing cost 144
Other borowing cost 27287
Less: Finance cost capitalisad 1S17.26)
246324
33, Deprociation and amortisation expense
Sea accounting policy in note Jd)(&) and {e){i)
Year ended Year ended
M March 2019 31 March 2018
Deprecation of proparty, plant and equipment 5258.59 -
Amortization of intangible assels 44.75
5,303.34
3. Other expenses
Yaar anded Year ended
M March 2018 31 March 2018
Consumgticn of stores and spares 945,50 -
Power and fuel B,T4T.53
Rand T8
Repairs lo:
« buiidings 1379
- plant and equipmeant BEd.19
- pihers 45757
Insurance okl
Rates and taxes .21
Trawaling expenses BOG.50
Freight and delivery expenses 1450.26
Export expenses 90107
Advertisement and sales promaotion 1,107.49
Direciors sitling fees 236 .
Payment fo auditors [refer nate 34 (i) below) ba: e ) o
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility [refer note 34 (i) below] 17.64 -
Loss on saleddiscard of property, plant and equipment 8.78
Amartisation of leasehold land prepayments 16.31
Provision for doubtul debés B4.TH .
Miscolaneos axpenses 1,938.95 5.08
1842741 519
34{l) Payment to auditors
As auddors:
- Statulory audi 2832 on
- Tax audil -
- Lirnited revienw of quarterty results -
In other capacity
« Certificaton lees 0.50
» Ofther sanvices -
Reimbursement of expenses - -
b i s 0
35, Income tax
See accounting policy in note 3(a)
Year ended Year ended
¥ March 2019 31 March 2018
(a) Amount recognised in Profit and Loss
Cuzrent tax 499,41
Earker yoars tax .
Income tax 489,41 -
Dedemed lax {2.218.99)
Mal credit [499.41)
Deferred tax (2,718.40)
Tax expense In Statement of Profit and Loss [2.218.99)
Deferrad tax in other comprahensive ncome 12147
Tax expense in Total Comprehensive Income (2.206.52)
{b) Reconcillation of effective tax rate for the year
Profit bafore Tae 1,238.45 (5.19)
Applicable Income Tax rate 34.844% 34.608%
Computed tax expense 43276 (1.BH
Addifional deducon 25 par income tax {2.907.17) .
Nen-deductible expenses for tax punposas 6.20
Dederrod tax assat not recogresed on business losses of subsidiary 333.83 .
Other differences (B4.E1) 180
Tax expense in Statement of Profit and Loss {2.218.99) .
(¢} Recognised deferred tax assets and labilities:
Property, pland and equipment and intangitie assals 14,733.04
Provisions for empioyee benefits [468.35)
Provigion for doubtful detbits [121.76)
Other lemporary differences [9.59)
Unabsorbed depreciation carmad foraard (12.429.43)
Minimiim Aliernate Tax (MAT) creda [453.41)
Deferred tax liabilities 1,205.30
{d) Reconciliation of Deferrod Tax Liabifity:
Temporary difference on account of:
Property, plant and equipmen] and intangible assels 10,283,335
Provisions for employee benefits 42.20)
Provizsion fior doubtil debis 131.12) -
Crher temparary differences (9.62)
Unabsamed depeaciation carmed forward (12.429.43)

comtmued om next page...
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Minimurm Allesreate Tax (MAT) crecht entitlemnent (499.41) 41, Fadr value measurement = Unhedged exposures
Deferred tax in Statement of Profit and Loss (2, 718.40) - Thee fair vahses of tha financial assels and habilities sne ncluded 1 the amount at which the irstrument could be Borrowings EURD £2)071,469 32,611.15
Temporary difierence of isbilfies in other comprehensive income 12147 . exchanged ina cument fransaction batween willing paries, ather than in fonced or fiquidation sale. usn 11,000,000 750210 .
Deferrod tax in Total Comprehensive Income 706,23 The Group has estabished the following fair value hierarchy that categonies the value into 3 levels. The inputs to 4031328 —"
L he . 2 ) valusation techriques used lo measune fai value of financial instruments ane. Y " e —
MAT credit utifisation in income tax for eadier yaars - ; : o : Barnawings - Packing credd uso 421,692 29143 -
| fis 2 706,27 Leved 1; The hierarchy uses quoted prices in acthe markets for idantical assets or Babilites. The fair value of all : S USD 74,102 W S —
Total Deferred { | bonds which ara traded in the stock exchangss is vaued Lsing e dasing prics or dealer quotations 25 at the Bomowings - Buyers - =
. Earnings per shars reporting date. Trace payabies EURD 1,196,493 927.45 .
Basic and diluted earnings per share Leved 2: The fair valus of financial instruments that are not raced in an actve masket {far axample raded bonds, usp 548,536 a8 =
{I} Prafit for the year, sitributable o the equily shareholdars JA5T.44 (519 mﬁﬂﬁmﬁmm] i'&ﬂ#ft:zm using Mm#ﬁrﬁmmﬂﬂ ﬂm 1,307:23 .
PRI T ma 25 &5 possible on Group specific esfimates, sign npulsreq r .
1||}W;mnmr:{::mm - 1 i gt bl the Rginmient s included InLevel2. deal:nmam usp 1,665,127 1,150.77
+Hmb o ooy shatey o O Deguiring o T s Ao : Lovel 3: I one or mons of the significant inputs is not based on coservable markel data, Ihe inslrument is included ARSENIy Gkl _ ;
~ Number of exquity shares allotied on 10 January 2018 . 1,000,000 i Level 3 Financial assats and GabilSes measured &t fair value - recurring fair value mazsuramants are s Areasanably possibée strengihening (weakening) of the 30 and EURD against Indian rupee at 31 March weald
3 CRRE NS i ’ ol ﬂ" b::: mmﬁs:lmmtﬁmli‘m v u:laummm e ﬁ:ﬂ
- Cancelled pursuant o schemne of amangement (See Note 43) 1,000,000 : 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 mﬂ““nﬂfmwgm“w s pubpha S MipReicisern
= Mumer of equity shanes at the end of the year 122,627,395 1,000,000 Financial assats - Lavel 2 Particulars Nature Effoct 31 March 2018 31 March 2078
Weighted average number of equity shares 1232, 627,395 1,000,000 Derivatvas 10.38 - USD [1% Mavement) Prafit or koss Strengthening [75.02) =
Baskc gnd diluted earnings per share (T} [[ENii] 282 052 The management assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalent, ofher bank balances, brade Weakening 75.02
. Contingent liabilities and commitments payable, cash cradits, barrcrwings and mi‘mnnal assets and kabilties approamate ther camying amounts Equity, net of tax Swangthening (40,08}
(it the exfent not prowided for) lamedy dua to the shoet lerm matunties of these instruments. Weghening 49,08
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 The fafiowing methods and asswemptions wane used i estimate the fair values: (a) The fair value of the quoted EUR (1% Mavement) Prafit o loss Sarangihaning {337.08)
Cantl liabilities vestments are: based on marke pnce al the respective reparing date. (b) The fair value of mtenest rate swaps is Waskening 337,08
gont calculated as the presant valua of the estimated future cash flows based on ohservable yield curves basad on Equity,neloflax  Strengthening {220.42) :
{a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts: report obtained from banking pariners. {c) The fair value of farward Torsign exchange contracks is calculated as " ing 23042 F
() Excisa duty, sales tax and other indinect taxes in dispute 1,029.07 the present value determined wsing forward exchange rates and intenest rate curve of the respective curmencies T :

b) The Hontle Suprema Coust of India ("SC7) by thair ceder dabed February 28, 2019, hlrncassMSurya
Roshani Limiad & others vs EFFO, setout the principles based on which allowances paid fo the employees
should b identified for inclusion in basic wagas for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund

contribution. Subsequently, a review peliion againstihis decision has been fled and is panding beforetha SC |

for dispasal. In view of the managemend, the Eability for the pencd from dale of the SC onder o 31 March 2015
i ot significant. Further, the panding decision on the sublect eview pelition and directions from tha EPFO,
the impact for the past period, if any, is not escartainable and consequently no effect has been given in the
BeLouns,

¢} Theaudited GST refurn for the year ended 31 Manch 2018 & panding for the fling as compelent authority has

extended the date of fling unill 31 August 2010. The Holding company is in process of reconciing the dataof

GSTR 2A with GSTR 38, In vew of the management on final reconcliation, the npact will ot be
maledial.

Capital and other commitments
{i} Estimated amount of export abligations 1o be hulled in respect of goods imported
undes Export Promation Capitsl Goods scheme (EPCG) 43.843.10

Clairmn against the Group nol acknowledged as debt:
Cash outfiows for tha above ane datarminable onéy on recesplof judgments pending atvanous forums! authorties.
The Group has reviewed &1 its pending fitigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where
provisions are requined and disclosed as contingen! abiities where applicable, in its financial statements. The
Group does not expect the oulcome of these proceadings to have a matenaly adverse efact on its financial
pasifion,
Operating loases
See acoounting policy in nobe 3{m)
The Group has taken cerlain commercial premises under cancellable operating leases. These lease agreements
are nomally renenwed on expiry. Leass payments recogrizsad in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss with
respect o operating leases T 715.16 kakhs {31 March 2018: T Nilj has been induded as rent in nate 34 "Crther
OXPENSEE.
. Related party disclosure
a] Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Holding company:
i) Greenply industries Limiled (upto 31.03.2018, pursuant to scheme of amangament)
Key Management Personned [(KMP)
Ii Mr. Shiv Prakash Matal. Director®
i} Mr. Shabhan Mital, Director*
i} Mr. Mahesh Kumar Jiwarajka, Non-Execiaiv Independent Dirscior
w)  Mr. Safil Kumar Bhandari, Non-Executive Independent Director
vl Ms. Susmila Singha, Non-Execuive Independant Director
* See Nobe 45.4 (1) , for details on KMP
Refatives of ey Management Personned (KMP)
i) Mrs. Chitwan Mittal (Wil of Mr. Shabhan Mtial)
b) Enterprises controlled by Key Management Personnel or their relatives
I} Greerlam Indusiies Limied
i} Greenply Industres Limiled
¢] Related party transactions

based on repor oblained from banking partners

Financial risk managamant

Thee Group has exposure b the following risks arising from firancialinstruments:

{it  Credil risk

(i} Liquidity risk

(i) Markat sk

Risk management framework

The Group's principal firancis! Kabilities, other than denvatives, comprises of bomowings, frade and other
payables. The man purpose of these fnancal liabilities is o Bnance the Group operations. The Group’s principal
financial assels, other than derivatives indude trade and olher receivables, imvesiments and cash and cash
equivalenis tat derve deectly from ils operations,

The Group's acthities expose it 1o a variaty of financial risks, inciuding market sk, credi risi and liquidity risk.
The Group's primary risk managemen facues is 1o minimise potential adverse affects of market risk on its fnancal
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate foreign exchange refated risk
exposures, Foreign currency options conlract ane endered fo hedge cenain foreign cumency risk exposures and
inlenest rale swaps 1o heage vanable nlerest rate exposures. The Groug's expasure b credd risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characleristic of each cuslomer and the cancenlration of risk from the top few cusiomers.
The Group's risk managemeant assessment and poficies and procasses are established to idenily and anafyse
the risks Eaced by the Group, to set appropriate sk Emits and controls, and to monitos such risks znd complance
with the same, Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewsd rogulary o reflect
changas inmarket conditions and the Group's acthvities.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure 1o each of the above risks, the Group's chiactives,
poiicies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capilal. The sources of
risks which the Group is exposed 1o and thesr management is ghven balow:

Risk Exposure Arising from Measurament Managemant
Credit risk Trade receivables, Agesng analyss, Diversification of mutual
Irvestments, Dedvative Credi raling fund Invesiments, Crecit
finandial nsruments, Loans limit and credit worlhingss
menitering, credd based
approvil process.
Liguidity risk Bamowings and Other Rofing cash flow Adequate urnsed credt
liabdities forecasts linets and bormowing
faciifag.
Mariet risk

Foeeign exchange risk | Commitied commarcial Cash flow forecasting | Forwarnd foresgn axchange
transaciion, Financial assal Sensifhity analysis | conbracts.

Mame of the related party Mature of transaction 3 March 2018 31 March 2018
Greanlam Industries Limiled Sala of products 546.14 -
Purchase of products 13736 4
Greanply Indusiries Limibed Sale of products 4,416.00 -
Equity share capital received - 10.00
Mr, Shiv Prakash Mittal Rernuneration 24514 -
Mr, Shobhan Mittal Rermuneration 260.58 .
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Jiwarsjia Sikiling Fees 1.00 -
Mir. Salil Kwmar Bhandan Sitling Fees 0.50 -
Ms. Susmata Singha Sining Fees 0.50 -
Mrs. Chitwar Métal Remunesation 2823
d) Outstanding balances
NHame of the related party Mature of transaction 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Groanlam Indusiries Limilesd Sale of products 66,04 =
Purchass of products 384 .
Greenply Industries Limited Sale of products 1,145.23 -

&} Key Managament Personnel compensation
Key management personnels compensation compnsed of the iollowang:

Nafure of transaction

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Short-term employee benefits 47142 =
Other long-tarm benafits 34.40 "
Total compensation paid to key management parsonnel 50582 -

As the future Esbility for gratuity and compensaled encashment is provided on an actuarial basss for the Heiding

Comparry a5 a whole, the amound perlairang 1o each key managemen! personnel |5 ned separalely ascerainable
and, tharafon, not included above. Based on the recemmandation of the Nominaton and Remuneration

Committes, all decisions relating bo the remunerabon of the KMPs are taken by the Board of Direclors of fhe

Halding Company, inaccondanca with shareholders’ approwal, wherever necessary
f) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Purchase from related parties ane made in the crdinary course of business and on temms equivalent to those that
prewail in am's length transactions with oiher vendors. Oulstanding balances a1 e year-and am unsscured and
will b saittied in cash and cash equivaants. The Group has not recarded any impairment of recanvables relating 1o

amounts owed by relaed parties. This assessment is undertaken in each financial year through examining the

financial position of the refated parties and the markat in which the related party cperates.

h) Details of loans, investments and guarantees covered under Section 186{4) of the Companies Act,
203

(il Details of loans
(i) Details of investments

Parsculars of Investments as required under Section 185{4) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosad
i ks 7.

i) Details of guarantees Mot Applicable
. Accounting classifications and fair values (ind AS 107)
See accounting policy in note 3(c)

The fair values of financial assats and liabilities, together with the carmying amounts shown in the Standalons
Balance Sheat are as folows:

Mot Applicabie

31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Financial assets at amortised cost
Non-curment
Loans 123368 .
Current
Trade recaivablas 4,561.86 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,956.58 507
Other bank balances m54 .
Loans 25
Cither financial assets 291869
10,731.69 507
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss -
Current
Level 2
Darvatives 10,38 -
10.38 .
Totad Financial Assets 10,742.08 507
Financial Habilities at amortised cost
Mon-currant
Boerowings 45,966.53
Oither financial lisbiities 1,253.00
Current
Bormowings 454170
Cther financial iabiites 10,973.37
Trade payables 815689 025
T0,501.43 0.25

and Eabifies not denominated
in INR
Interest rate Lang tarm bormowings Sarsfinity
&l variabla rales analysis Intarest rate | Inberast rate swaps
movements
(i} Crodit risk

Credil risk is the risk of fnandial koss of the Groug if & customer or countlerparty 10 a firancial instrument fails 1o
meet its contractual pbligaficns, and anses principalty from the Group recetvables from cusiomers and loans. The
Grouwp & exposed o credil rsk from s operating activiies (primarily trade recewvables) and from fs
financingfinesting activities, including deposits with bank, fareign exchange fransackons and financial
guaraniees. Tha Group has na significand concentraBion of credi risk with any counterparty. The carmying amount
offinancial azsets represant the maimum credi risk exposune.

Trade receivable

The managemant has establshed & creds policy undar which each new customer is anafysad individually for
creditworthiness befoee the Group's standard payment and delivery lerms and conditions are offered. The
Group's review Inclusdes extemal ratings, Il they are available, financial stalements, credit agency infamation,
Industry information and in some cases bank nlenences.

Exposure to credit risks

The Group's exposure fo credit risk is influenced mainy by (he Individual characieristics of each customar.
However management also considers the [acioes thal may influence he credit risk ol its customer base, including
the defaull risk associabed with the industry. Detads of concantration percentage of revenue generated from top
customer and lop five customers are stated below;

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Rewanua fom a top customer 6.38%
Revenue from fop five cusiomers 12.26%

Trate recesvables are primarily unsecured and are desved from revenue eamed from customers, Credit risk
s managed thraugh credit approvals, estabilshing credit limits and by continuously manitaring e
creditworthiness of cuslomens to which the Group grants credit bams in the nomal counsa of business. As
per simplified approach, the Group makes provision of expected credit loss on trede receivebles using a
provtsion matrx to mitigate the risk of delaull payments amd makes appropriabe provisions al each reporting
date whenaver is for longer pariod and invohves higher risk. On account of adaption of ind AS 109, the Group
uses expected credil loss moded fo assess the impairmant koss or gain, The Group uses a provision malrix b
compute the cradit oss sllowance for irade recelvables. The sald provision has been netied off under irads
recaivabies.

Particulars 31 March 2018 H March 2018
Balance al the beginning . .
Add: Amounl adjusted pursuant 1o Schame

of Amangement {Sae Nate 48) X948

Impairment loss racognised 56.90

Balance at the end 33%6.38

{ii] Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk &= defined as the nsk that the Group will nol be able o setfie or meet is obligetions on time or at
reasonable prce, Prudent Bguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficlent cash and marketable
secuities and e avalability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities 1o meel obligaticns whan
due. The Group's fnance leam is responsible for Bquidity, finding as wall as settemnent management. In addon,
processes and policies relaled bo such risks ane overseen by senior managemend. Managemenl monilors the
Group's liquidity posion through relling fonecasts on the basis of expecied cash flows. The Geoup's approach 1o
mianaging liquidity is b ensune, a5 far as possible, thatitwil have sufhcent bquidity 10 maed ifs iabiiies when tey
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurming unaccapiable losses or risking damage 1o
the Growp's reputation,

Exposure to liquidity risk

The table befow provides daltads regarding the remaining contractual matuntes of financial liabdities at the
reporting dete based on contractual undiscounted payments.

31 March 2018 <iyear 1-Syears >5Syears Total
Bamowings (including current maturities)” 1425893 3106784 1505664 6338327
Tras payables B.156.80 . - B15689
Ceher Enancial habilities T35 1,253.00 - ER TR
Derivatives

2513883 3332064 1805664  TRSTTNM

31 March 2018 <iyesr 1-Sysars > 5years Total
Bomowings {including curnent matunties) - . - -
Trade payables - - - -
Orher Bnancial labilities - - - -
Dervatives - . -

* including estimated inbarest

(i) Market risk

Marked risk is the risk of lcess of future earnings, fair vakse or future cash fiows that meay resutf from a change in the
price of a financial instrument . The value of a Bnancial instrument may change as a resull of changes in the
interest rales, forsign cumency axchange rates, commaodiy prices, equity prices and olher market changes that
effect marked risk sensitive instruments. Marked risk is attributable o il market risk sensitive financial instrumants
including investments and depesits, foreign cumency receivables, payables and bomowings, The Group uses
deivatives &0 manage marked risks, All such transactions are camed out within the guidelines sal by the
managemant.

{a) Currency risk

Foresgn curnency risk i the risk impact refated to tair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign cumency,
which fluctuate due b changes in foneign exchange rates. The Group's axposune ba the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primanly io the foreign curmency bamowings, import of raw materials and spana parts,
capital expenditure, expants of Enished goods. The Group evaluates exchanga rate exposure anising from foreign
curmency transactions. The Geoup follows established nsk management policies and stancand operaling
procedures. i uses dervatie instrumants o foraign cumency swaps and fonwards to bedge exposure b foreign
curmency risk

Exposure o cumency riskThe Group's exposure to foreign cumency at the end of the reporting penod are as
feliows:

3 March 2018 1 March 201
Particutars Currency Amount in Ampunt in
Foreign Foraign
currency  Tinlakhs  cumency T inLakhs
= Hedged exposures

Trade payabizs EURD 218,147 16060
uso 177 416 12261
ey

Intenest rale risk is the risk that the fair vaiue o Rulure cash flows of a financial instrument will luctuate because of
changas in markat inlerest e The Group axpasure o the rigk of changes in market imerest rates ralated
primarily 40 tha Group's short tarm bormowing with fcating inferest rates. Far 3 long term bomowings with Sioating
rates, the risk of variation In the interes! rates in mitigated through interest rale swaps, The Group constanty
manitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to acheve an optimal maturity poofile and
financing cost,

Exposure to imterest rate risk

Thi inferest rate profile of the Group 's inlenest bearing financial instruments at the end of the reponting perod are
as Inflows:

Particulars 3 March 2018 31 March 2018
Fixed rate instruments
Fimancial assets -
Financial fiabiktes -
Effect of interest rate swaps (7,602.90)
[7,602.10)
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets B
Firanciad Rabiles (60,031.98)
(60,031.98)
Effect of interes! rabe swaps 780210
|52,429.85)
Sensitivity analysis

Fixed rate instruments that ane carmed at amonised cost are not subject bo interest rate sk for the pumpose of
sensiive analysis,

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in variabile rabe instruments al the reporting dates would
have increased of decreased profit of loss by the amounts shown batow:

Particulars Nature Effect 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Variable rate instruments  Profit or loss Strenglhening (B00.32) .

600.32 J

Weakening
Equity netoftax  Strengthening {392.56) -
Weakaning 352,56 -
Intenes| rate swap Prafit or ks Strengthening 76.02 .
Weakening [T6.02) .
Equity. netof tax ~ Slrengthening 487 .
Weakening (49.71) .
Cash fow sensifivity (net]  Profit or loss Sitrengthening |524.30) -
Weakanmg 524.30
Equity. netoftax  Strengthening (342.85)
Weakening 342,85

Capital management

The Group's policy |s o mainain a strong capdal besa 50.85 io maintain invesior, creditor and market confidence
and 1 sustain kuture development of the business. Tha management monilors Be relum on capital, a5 well as the
laved of dividands to equity shansholders. The Geoup's objectve when managing capital ane 10; (a) 1o maxmise
shareholders value and provide benefits to other stakeholdars and {b) maintain an oplimal capital sirecture o
reduce the cost of capital, For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity
share capital and other equity resenves attributabie o the equity holders, The Geoup moniiors capital using debl-
‘equity raba, which is fatal deb lass liquid invastments divided by fotal equity,

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total debil (Bank and cher borrawsgs) 58,651.38 .
Less: Cash and cash equivalants 1,956.59 507
Adjusted net debt 56,604.79 (5.07)
Equity 64,549,580 451
Debt to Equity (net) 0.58 11.05)

fn addition, the Group has financial covenants refating to the banking faciiies that i has taken from all the lenders
e Interest servioe coverage ratio, Debt io EBTTDA, current ratio ete, which is mairiained by the Group.

Oparating segments
A Basks of segment

Anaperating segment ks a component of the Group that engages in business actvities fram which & may eam
rerveries and incur experses, ncluding revenues and expenses that reiale o ransactions with any of Lhe Group”
5 other components, and for which discrede financial information is gvailable. AR operating segments' operating
results are reviewed requiarly by the Group's Chief operating decision maker (CODM) o maka decisions about
resources b be alocated to the segments and assess their perlormance, The Group has two reportable
segmants, as described below, which i the Growg's sirategic business units. These business unils are managed
separately because they require cilerent fechnology and marketing strategies. The following summary
desoribes the operations in each of the Group's reportabile sagments

Reportable segment Oparations
Phywood and aliied products Manufachring
Mexdium Densy Fibre Boards and alled products Manufacturing

B. Information about repartable segmants

Infarmation regarding the results of each repartabile sagment is included below. Performance is measured basad
on sagment profif (befare tax), as included in the internal management reports that are reviewad by the Group’s
CEQ, Segment prafit s wsad fo measure performance a5 management beliaves that such information is the most
reskvant in evaluating the results of cestain sagments retative 1o ofher anftities that operaie within these ndusines
Infer-sagment pricing is debarmined on an sem's length basis.

Year ended 31 March 2013 Reportable segments
Plywood | Medium Total All Total
and Density | Reportable | ofther
allbed Fibre | segments | segments
products | Boards

and allled

products
Segment reverue
- External revenues
a) Sales 14,116,195 | 4414632 | 58.262.47 « | 58,26247
b} Other operating income: MAZ| 151480 164382 +| 154892
= Ifilasr-Gegiant mvenus . - N . -
Total segment revenus 14,5027 | 4576142 5981139 - | 59911.39
Segment profit{loss) before income tax| 204132 | 493709 6978 - | 697841
Segment profit{lss) before
Incoma tax inchudes:
Interest revenue * - . B -
Intarest axpense . - . . .
Depreciafion and amortisation 44508 | 438304 4830052 - | 483092
Tax expense . - . - -
Criher matertal non cash idem (f any) - - - - -
Segment assets 12,124.30 | 12453967 | 136,663.87 - [ 136,563.97
Segment labilities 398269 | TIA450008| 77.43LTS - | TTA3LTS

B. Information about reportabla segments (continued]
Year ended 31 March 2018

products | Boards
and allled
products
Segment revenue:
~ Exiernal revenues
a} Sales . - - - -
b} Other operaling income . . . - -
- Inles-segmant fevenue . -

Telal segment revenus . . . . -
Saegmant profiti{loss) befone incoms tax . . B ) -

Segment profitiless] befora income
fax inciudes:

Interast revanue - - - - -
Interest expense - - - - -
Deprecialion and amorisation - - - - -
Tax BNpense - - - - -
Crthet material non cash em (i any) . . . . .
Segment assets . - . . -
Sagment assets includa:
Capital expendiure during fha year 2 = 2 s 5
Praspestty, ptari and equipenen ans aliocabid based on lcation of lho assets

compnied on nest e
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[2) Current [iabiliies
{a) Financial lighfities
(1} Bomowings
(i} Trade payablas
(i) Other financial Eabilities
(b} Other cument lishities
(¢} Provisiong
Total current liabilities
Tatal liabdlities
48,3 Equity and Reserves pursuant to the scheme:

Pursuanl to the scheme, the difference between (ha book value of the assets and kabsdities transfesred from
Greenply has been credited o the sharehoiders' fund of the Holding Company as under

Particulars
Share Capital
Captal Reserve

C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS measures

Year ended
3 March 2019

{c) The amount of imeres! due and payabla for the panod of delay n
making payment {which have bean paid but bayond the
appoinied day during the yearibut withoul adding the interest
speciied under MSMED Act, 2006:

(d] The amount of inferest accrved and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounfing year

(e} The amoun of further interest remaining due and paysble even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the inleresd dues
83 above ane actually paid 1o the small enterpeise, for the purpose
of disallowance a3 a deductible expendilure under Section 23
of the MSMED Acl, 2006.

. Gavernment granl {ind AS 20): Other operating revenue includes incentives agamst schema of budgetary
support under Goods end Services Tax Regime for Bhe und sef-up in Rudrepur-MDF, Utarakhand of = 87655
lakhes [31 Manch 2018 = Nil)

Scheme of Arrangement

Pursuant to the Compositie Scheme of Arangement (the scheme’) between Greenply Industries Limited
(Greanply), the Holding Comparry and thesr respective shareholders and creditors a5 approved by the Hon'ble
Naticnal Law Compary Tribunal (NCLT), Guwahati Banch, vide its order dated June 28, 2019, which became
effective on July 1, 2019 on fling with the Registrar of Companies, all the assets and llabdities of the transfemed
business of Groenply | &, the MOF manudachuring unit situated a1 Routhu Suramala, Chitioor [Andhra Pradash), Tatal
MOF manufacturing unit and Plywood and alied products manufactuning unil located in a common plot &l © 43.4 Othar N
Pantnagar (Uttarakhand), registered, marketing, branch and administrafive ofioa(s) located in India and is ' Wathae:
investment in wheily owned subsidiany viz. Greenpaned Singapors Pie Lid_ formally known as Greenply Trading | &) The Holding Company shal issue and allod 12,26,27,395 equity shares of Re, 1 (indian Rupas ona céy) 1o te

Year ended
31 March 2018 311251
B714.78
788515
360365
196,69
2361278

76,008.18

I. Revenues

Total revenue for raportable segments 5991139
Rewanue for ofher segments -
Eliminaticn of infer-sagment revenue -
Eliminaion of revenue of decontinued operation -
Consolidated revenue

ii, Profit before tax

Total profit befone b for resorable sepments
Profit before tax for other segments
Elimination of inter-sagment profits
Efimination of profit of disconfinued operation
Unabocated amaunts:

Corporale gxpenses
Consolidated profit befors tax

Wi, Aszets

Amaunt
122627
59,806.56
£1,034.83

(5,739.96)
1,208.45

Total ezsels dor repariable segments 136,663.47

Assals for ofner segments .

Unalocated amounts 913136
Consolidated total assets 145,795.33

v, Liahilities

Toal liabilities for reporiabie segments 1743275

Lizbilises for other segments -

Unalocated amounts 3B12.78
Consalidated total lkabilities B1,245.53

C. Reconciliations of information on reporiable segments to Ind AS measures (contineed)
v, Other material ifems

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2018 Year ended 31 March 2018

Adjust-| Congali-
menis | dated
fotals

Reportable | Adjusi-| Consoll-
segment | ments|  dated
‘total

2453.24) 2483.24

5,303.34

Within India Ouiside India Total

31 March| 31 March
2019 2018

31 March | 31 March

018 2018 2018

External revenue by location
of customers

Carrying ameunt of segment
assets by location of assets

53.029.50 6,581.48 59,811.39

142,620.79 317454 145.795.33

E. Major customer

The Group does nol receive 10% or more of ils revenues from iransactions with any single exdernal
customer.

. Taxation

The Groug has establizhed a comprehensive system of manienance of information and docurments as requined
by the transder pricing regulations under Sections S2-92F of the Income-Tax Act, 1961, Since (he law requires
wxistence of such information and documentation 1o be conlemparanscus in nature, the Group continueushy
updatas its documents for the inermaticnal transactions entered info with the associated enterprises during the
financial year. The management is of the opinion hat its intamational iransacsions are al arm's langth so that e
alresaid lagistation will not have any impact on the financial statements, pariculady on the amourt of ta
axpanss for the year and that of pravision for taxation

. Dues to Micro enterprises and small enterprisas

31 March 2018 31 March 2018

{a) The amaunts remaining unpaid lo Micro and Small suppliers

as &1 the end of each accounting year

- Principal 0.8

= Interest -
b The amouet of interest peid by the buyer in terms of Section 16

al te Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises Development Act,

2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) along with the amount of the payment

made io the supplier beyond the apporntsd day during each

BCCOUNGNY yoar,

Pta. Limited {regisiened in Singapore) excluding its investment of LISD 37, 50,000 {37, 50,000 ordinany shanes of
USD 1 each) in Greanply Alkemal {Singapare] Ple. Lid. (regisiered in Singapore)., have baen iransfermed to and
vested in the Holding Company at their respective book values on a going concem basis with effect from the
appointed date (Le. Apnil 1, 2018). Accondingly, the Scheme of Arrangament has bean given efiect 1o in these
BCCounts,

48.2 Assets and Habilities transferred pursuant to the schems:

The whole of the assais and liabiities of the Demerged undertaking of Greenply became the assets and liabiiies
of the Hoiding Company and were recorded at their book values as appearing in the books of the Demenged
Company with effect from the appointed date {Le, Apell 1, 2018}, The detalls of assets and kabilites iransfemed
from Greanply are as under:

Particulars
Assols
(1) Mon-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
{b) Capital work-n-progress
() Othar intangible assats
{d] Financial assets
i) Invarstrints
(i} Loans
(8] Other non-cumrent assets
Total nan-current assets
{3} Current assets
{a) Inventodes
{b) Firancial assets
(i) Trada recevables
(i} Cash and cash equivalants
{lil} Othar bk balarces
(i) Loans
{v) Derivathies
(v} Other financial assets
(e} Other curmant assets
Total current assets
Total assats
Liabllities
(1) Mon-current liahilities
{a) Financlal liabiifies
{i) Borrowings
{ii) Other financial labiities
(b) Provisions
{c) Dwferred ax Gabiises (net)
{d) Other non-curmant Eabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Amount

T ETOT
73,346.85
1713

1000
119427
231998

114,617.10

10,238 48

506497
§16.10
9385
a1.44
12597
1,501.86
4 50344

24
137,043.01

41 BT 8T
1.0567.53
T8E.TT
iams
4.5991.70
52,295.40

sharehoiders of Greanply whase names appear in tha register of members of Greenply as on the recoed daba, 1
{one) equity share of e, 1 (indian Rupees one only) each, credited as fully pald up for every 1 (one) equity share
of Re. 1 {Indian Rupees cne only) each held by them in Greenply. Till the aliotmant, the same would appear in
share suspense aocount. Sinca the effact of demenger has been given in the financials, 10,00,000 equity shares
of Re. 1 each alloted ' Greenply has been cancelled and the Holding Company has ceased 4o be subsadiary of
Greanply

The transactions between the appainted dali upio to the effecte dale as appearing in the books of accourts of
Greenply have been daemed to have been mada by the Hokling Company,

Al costs, charpes and expenses incuding stamp dubies arising cut of or incurmed 5o far in camying cut and
implementing this Scheme and matters incidantal therso, have been borne by Greenply and the Hoiding
Company inthe ratioof 1:1,

The immovabla assats of the Holding Company stands freed from all charges, morigages and encumbrences
redating o habslites redating to Gresnply, Bur, Greenply had created charges over its immovable assets (including
these which now belong 1o the Holding Company) undar the Comparies Act. 2013 in respact of certain credit
facilities taken from various banks for itself and for various underiskings of the Holding Company, As the fegal
ownesship of the immovable assets have not yel been transferred to the Holding Company, Greenply continues 1o
anjoy credi faciities by the subsisting charges, morganges and encumibirances aver such assats. Vics Versa, the
Holding Company enjoys credit faciities by the subsisting charges, morigages and encumbrances over
immovible assels befonging to Greenply. Til creation'modification/satisfaction of Charges, a3 the casa may be,
i favour of the vancus banks/secured craditons of the respactive Companies in barms of the applicable pravisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, the banka/secured craditors of the Holding Cempany shall continue fo hold their
respective charge over the immavable assets of Greenply.

Although, pussisant i the schema of arangement, the immovabie propamies belanging o the demaened
underiakings of Greenply vesl in and'or deemed fo be ransferrad o and vested in the Holding Company, the
mutation of file/assignment of kzases therecd in the name of the Holding Company are yel 1o be made and
recordied by the appropriate aithontios. Notwithstanding the same, the Holding Company axercises all rights and
privileges and pays ground rent, municipal taxes and fulfis all obligations, in relafion 1o or applicabla to such
immigvainle properties,

Mr. Shiv Prakash Mittad and Mr. Shobihan Métal, Direclors of the comparry would be appointed as Execulive
Chairman and Managing Director & CEQ respectivaly in tha board mesting 1o ba held on 19 July 2019, As such
they have been induded &s Key Managesial Personned (KMP), s=nce they have a significant influence over the
operating and financial decisions making roles. Hence, the remuneration paid Lo them during FY 2015-1% has
bean disciosed as related party ransaction,

. Distribution made and proposed dividend [Ind AS 1)

Proposad dividends on equity shares am subjedl lo approval &l the annual general meeting and are not
recognised as a kability {induding dividend distribution tax therean) as at 31 March 2018, Since no dividand has
been proposed in the cumenl and previous year, financial figures with respect fo the same has nal been
given.

. The consolidated financial stalements of the previous year was nat required o be prapared sinca thane was no

entty for the purpose of consaiidaticn

. Thefigures stated in the current vear ane nol comparable with Mose of previcus period for the reasons that (a) the

figures for the pravious panod wene snce incorparation af the Helding Company an Decernbar 13, 2017 to March
31, 2018; and (b} in the current year, eflect has been given 1o Scheme of Arangement as approved by the
Natiorsal Comparry Law Tribunad. The fiqunes for he previows penod ane re-classified/ re-armanged | re grouped,
wherevar necessany 50 a5 1o ba in corformity with the figures of the curnant pariod's classificationidisciosure

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Greenpanel Industries Limited
Sd-

Shiv Prakash Mittal

Exogutive Chadman

Place: Kolkata
Date: Oclobar 14, 2019
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